CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, PuBLIC FINANCING
AUTHORITY, HOUSING AUTHORITY

AGENDA

Joint REGULAR Meeting
Wednesday, June 10, 2020 * 4:00 p.m.

Teleconference Location Only-City Hall/Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 related to the COVID-19 virus.

PuBLIC MEETING VIEWING

+ Live Broadcast on Local Government Channel, Live web-streaming, and Archived videos online.

The Regular Meetings of the City Council are scheduled for the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays and are broadcast live
on Cox Communications-Channel 19, Spectrum(Time Warner)-Channel 24, and AT&T U-verse Channel 99. The
video taping of meetings are maintained as a permanent record and contain a detailed account of the
proceedings. Council meeting tapings are archived and available for viewing on the City’s Public Meetings
webpage.

< Zoom Virtual Webinar (registration required). Register early and Join the meeting at least 15 minutes prior
to the start time. * To register to view/listen to the meeting, go to this public participant link
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_L-gnG]L5SASgMmMH7ZrRVHQ for this meeting, follow the
prompts to enter your name and email address. * To receive a confirmation email allowing you to enter the
meeting and the link to join, you will need to enter a valid email address. Choose Gallery View to see the
presentations, when applicable.

MEETING LOCATION WILL NOT BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.

Due to the Executive Order to stay home, in person participation at City Council meetings will not be allowed at
this time. In accordance with the Executive Order to stay home, there will be no_members of the public in
attendance at Council Meetings. Alternatives to in-person attendance for viewing and participating in City
Council meetings are being provided under Public Participation.

AGENDA MATERIALS

A full City Council agenda packet including relative supporting documentation is posted online
www.cityofsolanabeach.org Closed Session Agendas are posted at least 72 hours prior to regular meetings and at
least 24 hours prior to special meetings.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
< Written correspondence regarding an agenda item at an open session meeting should be submitted to the City
Clerk’s Office at EMAILGRP-CityClerksOfc@cosb.org with the Subject line including the meeting date June 10, 2020.
Please include the Agenda Item# and topic in your email. * Correspondence received after the official posting of the
agenda, but before 12:00 p.m. on meeting day, will be distributed to Council and made available to the public online
along with the agenda posting. Written submittals will be added to the record and not read out loud. * All submittals
received before the start of the meeting will be made part of the record. The designated location for viewing public
documents is the City’s website www.cityofsolanabeach.org
«» Zoom Webinar Public Comment Participation:
If you wish to provide a live verbal comment during the meeting, register for the Zoom Virtual (City Council Meeting) Webinar
(registration required), register for the Zoom webinar as noted at the top, under Public Meeting/Zoom Webinar, and join the
meeting using the “Join Webinar” link provided in your confirmation email.
1) EMAIL a Speaker Request by 12:00 p.m. (noon) on meeting day to EMAILGRP-CityClerksOfc@cosb.org

e  Subject line should include Request to Speak

e  Content should include the Item/Topic you would like to speak on.
AND
2) REGISTER as a speaker on meeting day by 12:00 p.m. (hoon) by going to:

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_L-gnGjL5SASQMmH7ZrRVHQ

and follow the required prompts to receive a confirmation email with your log in link.

e Join the meeting 30 minutes before the meeting begins by clicking on the link provided in your confirmation email.

e Speaking participants may use the computer's microphone and speakers to listen and communicate or they may also
call into the meeting by dialing into the meeting with a telephone (this information will be provided in your email
confirmation). If you call in as well for better audio, mute your computer's speakers to eliminate feedback.

e Participants will be called upon from those who have submitted the Speaker Request, registered, and logged on as
described above. You will be called on by name and unmuted by the meeting organizer and may provide comments
for the allotted time. Allotted speaker times are listed under each Agenda section.



https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.ci.solana-2Dbeach.ca.us_index.asp-3FSEC-3DF0F1200D-2D21C6-2D4A88-2D8AE1-2D0BC07C1A81A7-26Type-3DB-5FBASIC&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=1XAsCUuqwK_tji2t0s1uIQ&m=wny2RVfZJ2tN24LkqZmkUWNpwL_peNtTZUBlTBZiMM4&s=WwpcEQpHHkFen6nS6q2waMuQ_VMZ-i1YZ60lD-dYRRE&e=
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_L-gnGjL5SASqMmH7ZrRVHQ
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.cityofsolanabeach.org&d=DwQFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=1XAsCUuqwK_tji2t0s1uIQ&m=wny2RVfZJ2tN24LkqZmkUWNpwL_peNtTZUBlTBZiMM4&s=6ATguqxJUOD7VVtloplAbyuyNaVcEh6Fl4q1iw55lCY&e=
mailto:EMAILGRP-CityClerksOfc@cosb.org
http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/
mailto:EMAILGRP-CityClerksOfc@cosb.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_L-gnGjL5SASqMmH7ZrRVHQ
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.ci.solana-2Dbeach.ca.us_index.asp-3FSEC-3DF0F1200D-2D21C6-2D4A88-2D8AE1-2D0BC07C1A81A7-26Type-3DB-5FBASIC&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=1XAsCUuqwK_tji2t0s1uIQ&m=C7WzXfOw2_nkEFMJClT55zZsF4tmIf_7KTn0o1WpYqI&s=3DcsWExM2_nx_xpvFtXslUjphiXd0MDCCF18y_Qy5yU&e=

e Participants can use a computer microphone and speakers to listen and communicate or dial into the meeting with a
telephone (if you log in and call in, mute one of the devices to eliminate feedback).

e Do not self-mute since you will muted when you enter the meeting and organizers will unmute you to provide
comments. All oral comments received prior to the close of the meeting will be made part of the meeting record.

SPECIAL ASSISTANCE NEEDED - AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT TITLE 2

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, persons with a disability may request an agenda in
appropriate alternative formats as required by Section 202. Any person with a disability who requires a modification
or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the City Clerk’s office (858) 720-
2400 EMAILGRP-CityClerksOfc@cosb.org at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.

As a courtesy to all meeting attendees, please set cellular phones and pagers to silent mode
and engage in conversations offline/muted.

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS
Jewel Edson, Mayor

Judy Hegenauer, Deputy Mayor Kristi Becker, Councilmember

Kelly Harless, Councilmember David A. Zito, Councilmember
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela lvey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

SPEAKERS:
See Public Participation on the first page of the Agenda for publication participation options.

READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:

Pursuant to Solana Beach Municipal Code Section 2.04.460, at the time of introduction or adoption of an
ordinance or adoption of a resolution, the same shall not be read in full unless after the reading of the title,
further reading is requested by a member of the Council. If any Councilmember so requests, the ordinance or
resolution shall be read in full. In the absence of such a request, this section shall constitute a waiver by the
council of such reading.

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
CLOSED SESSION REPORT:

FLAG SALUTE:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:

Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.

This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the City
Council on items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by having submitted
written comments for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the virtual meeting
online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda.

Comments relating to items on this evening’s agenda are taken at the time the items are heard.
Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action shall be taken by the City Council on public comment items.
Council may refer items to the City Manager for placement on a future agenda. The maximum time
allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY:

An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items are not
agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 10, 2020 Page 2 of 7


mailto:EMAILGRP-CityClerksOfc@cosb.org
mailto:https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SolanaBeach/

A. CONSENT CALENDAR: (Action Items) (A.1. - A.6.)

Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.

Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council unless
pulled for discussion.

Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting written
correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the virtual meeting
online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. The maximum time
allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).

Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of the Council will be trailed to the end
of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the public will be discussed immediately
after approval of the Consent Calendar.

A.1. Minutes of the City Council. (File 0300-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Approve the Minutes of the City Council Meetings held March 19, 2020.
Item A.1. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.2. Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Ratify the list of demands for May 9, — May 22, 2020.
Item A.2. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.3. General Fund Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Changes. (File 0330-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 General
Fund Adopted Budget.

Item A.3. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.4. Fire Benefit Fee Fiscal Year 2020-21. (File 0495-20)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2020-072:
a. Setting the FY 2020/21 Fire Benefit Fee at $10.00 per unit, and
b. Approving the Fee for levying on the tax roll.

ltem A.4. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 10, 2020 Page 3 of 7



https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.1._Report_(click_here)_06-10-20_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.2._Report_(click_here)_06-10-20_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.3._Report_(click_here)_06-10-20_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.4._Report_(click_here)_06-10-20_-_O.pdf

A.5. Municipal Improvement Districts Benefit (MID) Fees Fiscal Year 2020-21. (File 0495-
20)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Approve Resolution 2020-067, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9C, Santa
Fe Hills, at $232.10 per unit for FY 2020/21.

2. Approve Resolution 2020-068, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9E, Isla
Verde, at $68.74 per unit for FY 2020/21.

3. Approve Resolution 2020-069, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9H, San
Elijo Hills # 2, at $289.58 per unit for FY 2020/21.

4. Approve Resolution 2020-070, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 33,
Highway 101/Railroad Right-of-Way, at $3.12 per unit for FY 2020/21.

Item A.5. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.6. Annual Sewer Service Charge for Fiscal Year 2020-21. (File 1040-70)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2020-079 approving the FY 2020/21 Annual Sewer Service
Charge at $682.31 per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).

ltem A.6. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS: (B.1. - B.2))

Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.

This portion of the agenda provides citizens an opportunity to express their views on a specific issue,

as required by law after proper noticing, by submitting written comments for the record or by

registering to join the virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on
the Agenda.

o After considering all of the evidence, including written materials and oral testimony, the City
Council must make a decision supported by findings and the findings must be supported by
substantial evidence in the record.

e An applicant or designee(s) for a private development/business project, for which the public
hearing is being held, is allotted a total of fifteen minutes to speak, as per SBMC 2.04.210. A
portion of the fifteen minutes may be saved to respond to those who speak in opposition. All other
speakers have three minutes each.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 10, 2020 Page 4 of 7



https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.5._Report_(click_here)_06-10-20_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.6._Report_(click_here)_06-10-20_-_O.pdf

B.1. Public Hearing: 127-129 Granados, Applicant: Granados Partners LLC, Case 17-
17-47. (File 0600-40)

The Staff recommends that the City Council:

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the public hearing, Report Council disclosures,
Receive public testimony, Close the public hearing.

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Sections 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines;

3. Adopt Resolution 2020-078, if the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves
the project, to conditionally approving a Development Review Permit, a Structure
Development Permit, and a Minor Subdivision Tentative Parcel Map for condominium
purposes, to consolidate two existing legal lots into one legal lot of 14,381 square feet,
demolish the existing structures onsite, construct four detached single-family condominium
dwelling units, each consisting of two stories with an attached two-car garage and
associated site improvements on property on the 127-129 North Granados Avenue, Solana
Beach.

Item B.1. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. The
final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

B.2. Public Hearing: 201 Ocean Street, Applicant: Carome, Case 17-18-02. (File 0600-40)

The proposed project meets the minimum objective requirements under the SBMC,
may be found to be consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as
conditioned, to meet the discretionary findings required as discussed in this report to
approve a DRP and administratively issue a SDP. Therefore, Staff recommends that
the City Council:

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council Disclosures,
Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing.

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Section 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, adopt
Resolution 2020-077 conditionally approving a DRP and SDP to remodel the
existing residence and construct a new two-story addition, including a roof top deck
and a walk out deck off the east side of the proposed addition. In addition, the
Applicant is proposing to convert an existing detached accessory structure to an
accessory dwelling unit (ADU) at 201 Ocean Street, Solana Beach.

ltem B.2. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. The
final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

C. STAFF REPORTS: (C.1.-C.2.)

Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.

Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting written
correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the virtual meeting
online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. The maximum time
allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 10, 2020 Page 5 of 7



https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.2._Report_(click_here)_06-10-20_-_O.pdf

C.1. County Allocation of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES)
Act Coronavirus Relief Fund. (File 0230-10)

The Staff recommends that the City Council

1. Provide direction to Staff on the use of the $238,605 County allocation of CARES
Act CRF funds including its use for Economic Support Initiatives such as a small
business loan or grant program.

Item C.1. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

C.2Z. COVID-19 Relief Measures Including Shared Streets, Outdoor Dining and Permit
Extensions. (File 0230-10)

The Staff recommends that the City Council

1. Providing direction regarding the Shared Streets program. If Council approves
implementing the program, then also authorize the City Manager to execute any
and all necessary agreements to facilitate the program.

2. Adoption of Resolution 2020-087 implementing a Temporary Use Permit process
for outdoor dining that would allow restaurants and microbreweries to temporarily
expand their dining area through December 31, 2020, or until the emergency order
and social distancing requirement are lifted, and extend all permit and project
applications for a specified period of time as directed by City Council.

Item C.2. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

WORK PLAN COMMENTS:
Adopted June 12, 2019

COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE:

GC: Article 2.3. Compensation: 53232.3. (a) Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be limited
to, meals, lodging, and travel. 53232.3 (d) Members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on
meetings attended at the expense of the local agency “City” at the next regular meeting of the
legislative body.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees
REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council)

a. City Selection Committee (meets twice a year) Primary-Edson, Alternate-Zito

b. County Service Area 17: Primary- Harless, Alternate-Edson

c. Escondido Creek Watershed Authority: Becker /Staff (no alternate).

d. League of Ca. Cities’ San Diego County Executive Committee: Primary-Becker, Alternate-
Harless and any subcommittees.

e. League of Ca. Cities’ Local Legislative Committee: Primary-Harless, Alternate-Becker

f. League of Ca. Cities’ Coastal Cities Issues Group (CCIG): Primary-Becker, Alternate-Harless

g. North County Dispatch JPA: Primary-Harless, Alternate-Becker

h. North County Transit District: Primary-Edson, Alternate-Becker

i. Regional Solid Waste Association (RSWA): Primary-Hegenauer, Alternate-Becker

j. SANDAG: Primary-Zito, 1%t Alternate-Edson, 2" Alternate-Becker, and any subcommittees.

k. SANDAG Shoreline Preservation Committee: Primary-Hegenauer, Alternate-Zito

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 10, 2020 Page 6 of 7



https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.1._Report_(click_here)_06-10-20_-_O(2).pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.2._Report_(click_here)_06-10-20_-_O.pdf
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=584E1192-3850-46EA-B977-088AC3E81E0D&Type=B_BASIC

l.
m.
n

San Dieguito River Valley JPA: Primary-Hegenauer, Alternate-Zito

San Elijo JPA: Primary-Zito, Primary-Becker, Alternate-City Manager

22" Agricultural District Association Community Relations Committee: Primary-Edson, Primary-
Harless

STANDING CoMmMITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees)

a. Business Liaison Committee — Zito, Edson.

b. Fire Dept. Management Governance & Organizational Evaluation — Harless, Hegenauer
c. Highway 101 / Cedros Ave. Development Committee — Edson, Becker

d. Parks and Recreation Committee — Zito, Harless

e. Public Arts Committee — Edson, Hegenauer

f. School Relations Committee — Hegenauer, Harless

g. Solana Beach-Del Mar Relations Committee — Zito, Edson

ADJOURN:

Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting is June 24, 2020

Always refer the City’s website Event Calendar for Special Meetings or an updated schedule.

Or Contact City Hall 858-720-2400
www.cityofsolanabeach.org

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

STATE OF CALIFORNIA } §

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

I, Angela Ivey, City Clerk of the City of Solana Beach, do hereby certify that this Agenda for the June 10, 2020
Council Meeting was called by City Council, Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency, Public Financing
Authority, and the Housing Authority of the City of Solana Beach, California, was provided and posted on June
3, 2020 at 5:40 p.m. on the City Bulletin Board at the entrance to the City Council Chambers. Said meeting is
held at 4:00 p.m., June 10, 2020, in the Council Chambers, at City Hall, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach,
California.

Angela Ivey, City Clerk * City of Solana Beach, CA

CITIZEN CITY COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

Regularly Scheduled, or Special Meetings that have been announced, are posted on each Citizen
Commission’s Agenda webpage. See the Citizen Commission’s Agenda webpages or the City’s Events
Calendar for updates.

o O O O

o Budget & Finance Commission

Climate Action Commission
Parks & Recreation Commission
Public Arts Commission

View Assessment Commission

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 10, 2020 Page 7 of 7


http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=3302C065-5C8A-43D2-88C2-F03C61D1DA2A&Type=B_BASIC
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=FA26EC83-8D1C-4941-A3B2-20CA81EDCDDE&Type=B_EV

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY, PuUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

MINUTES

Joint - Closed Session
Meeting
Thursday, March 19, 2020 5:30 p.m.
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California

Pursuant to Governor Newsom'’s Executive Order N-25-20, members of the City Council
or staff may participate in this meeting via a teleconference.

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS
Jewel Edson, Mayor

Judy Hegenauer, Deputy Mayor Kristi Becker, Councilmember
Kelly Harless, Councilmember David A. Zito, Councilmember
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela lvey

City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
Mayor Edson called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

Present: Kristi Becker, David A. Zito- physical attendance
Jewel Edson, Judy Hegenauer, Kelly Harless — telephonic remote
attendance

Absent: None

Also Present: Greg Wade, City Manager

Johanna Canlas, City Attorney

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (ONLY):

Report to Council Chambers and submit speaker slips to the City Clerk before
the meeting recesses to closed session.

CLOSED SESSION:

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - INITIATION OF LITIGATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4)
One (1) Potential case(s).

ACTION: No reportable action.

ADJOURN:
Mayor Edson adjourned the meeting at 6:15 p.m.

Angela Ivey, City Clerk Approved:

Solana Beach City Council Closed Session Agenda March 19, 2020 Page 1 of 1



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY,
PuBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

MINUTES

Joint SPECIAL Meeting
Thursday, March 19, 2020 * 6:00 p.m.
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-25-20, members of the City Council or staff may participate in this meeting via a teleconference.
» City Council meetings are video recorded and archived as a permanent record. The video recording captures the
complete proceedings of the meeting and is available for viewing on the City's website.
» Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time prior to meetings for processing new
submittals. Complete records containing meeting handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records

Request.
CiITY COUNCILMEMBERS
Jewel Edson, Mayor
Judy Hegenauer, Deputy Mayor Kristi Becker, Councilmember
Kelly Harless, Councilmember David A. Zito, Councilmember
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela Ivey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
Mayor Edson called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Present: Kristi Becker, David A. Zito- physical attendance
Jewel Edson, Judy Hegenauer, Kelly Harless — telephonic remote
attendance

Absent: None

Also Present: Greg Wade, City Manager

Johanna Canlas, City Attorney
Angela lvey, City Clerk,

CLOSED SESSION REPORT: None

FLAG SALUTE:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Hegenauer and second by Councilmember Becker to
approve. Approved 5/0. Motion carried unanimously.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: None

This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the City
Council on items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by submitting a
speaker slip (located on the back table) to the City Clerk. Comments relating to items on this
evening’'s agenda are taken at the time the items are heard. Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action
shall be taken by the City Council on public comment items. Council may refer items to the City
Manager for placement on a future agenda. The maximum time allotted for each presentation is
THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190). Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

Solana Beach City Council Special Meeting Minutes March 19, 2020 Page 1 of 3


https://solanabeach.12milesout.com/#page=1
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=C38A5C14-3D2B-4356-BFEA-A35854AC6D45&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY:
An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items are not
agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.

A. CONSENT CALENDAR: (Action Items) (A.1.-A.2))

Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council unless
pulled for discussion. Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern
by submitting to the City Clerk a speaker slip (located on the back table) before the Consent
Calendar_is_addressed. Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of the
Council will be trailed to the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the public
will be discussed immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar.

A.1. Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Ratify the list of demands for February 22, 2020 — March 06, 2020.
Item A.1. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Hegenauer and second by Councilmember Zito to
approve. Approved 5/0. Motion carried unanimously.

A.2. General Fund Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Changes. (File 0330-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 General
Fund Adopted Budget.

Item A.2. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Hegenauer and second by Councilmember Zito to
approve. Approved 5/0. Motion carried unanimously.

C. STAFF REPORTS: (C.1.)
Submit speaker slips to the City Clerk.

C.1. Emergency Services Proclamation of Existence of a Local Emergency.
(File 0240-00)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Consider the adoption of Resolution 2020-036 confirming City Manager/Director
of Emergency Services Proclamation of Existence of a Local Emergency.

2. Provide direction to Staff on items for future Council meetings for consideration
and/or discussion.

Iltem C.1. Report (click here)
Item C.1. Supplemental Docs (Updated 3-19 at 11am)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Special Meeting Minutes March 19, 2020 Page 2 of 3


https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.1._Report_(click_here)_03-19-20_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.1._Report_(click_here)_03-19-20_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.2._Report_(click_here)_03-19-20_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.2._Report_(click_here)_03-19-20_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.1._Report_(click_here)_03-19-20_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.1._Report_(click_here)_03-19-20_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.1._Supplemental_Docs_(Upd._3-19_at_1015am)_-_O.pdf

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item and reviewed the health emergency
declarations and orders from the World Health Organization, State of California, San Diego
County Health Officer, and the City Manager, as the Emergency Services Director, for the City
of Solana Beach. He spoke about declaring the emergency in the City of Solana Beach on
March 16, 2020 and bringing it to Council to be ratified, the number of steps taken during the
developing situation including closing all City facilities to the public, providing services as
possible, non-essential staff mostly telecommuting at this time, currently continuing the public
works inspections and essential inspections where necessary, rolling out more services in the
coming days and weeks with some different protocols, and assessing future projects, services,
and events as the circumstances progress with the safety of Staff and the public in mind.

Council and Staff discussed the protection of City Staff and the public, the Governor’s stay-at-
home order, efforts of the City Manager, Public Safety personnel, and Staff,

Greg Wade, City Manager, read a written comment received from Mr. Will Ye who spoke about
his request and need for field inspection services with social distancing measures and
coordination with a single point of contact due to the many financial obligations of projects.

Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Hegenauer and second by Councilmember Harless to
approve. Approved 5/0. Motion carried unanimously.

Council and Staff discussed halting shutting off utilities, exploring financial assistance for local
businesses in need, public outreach and communication, loss of jobs and pressure on
residents for rents and mortgage payments, evictions on hold, closures of courts, utilities
suspending collections, more discussion with the water district and treatment plant on services,
and work to further review other services and needs.

WORK PLAN COMMENTS:

Adopted June 12, 2019

Council agreed to maintain current workplan and postpone more work on the next Fiscal
Year Work Plan until the health emergency is over or until further notice.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees

REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council)
STANDING CommITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees)

ADJOURN:
Mayor Edson adjourned the meeting at 7:15 p.m.

Angela lvey, City Clerk Approved:

Solana Beach City Council Special Meeting Minutes March 19, 2020 Page 3 of 3


https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=584E1192-3850-46EA-B977-088AC3E81E0D&Type=B_BASIC

STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: June 10, 2020

ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance

SUBJECT: Register of Demands

BACKGROUND:

Section 3.04.020 of the Solana Beach Municipal Code requires that the City Council ratify a
register of demands which represents all financial demands made upon the City for the
applicable period.

Register of Demands- 05/09/20 through 05/22/20

Check Register-Disbursement Fund (Attachment 1) $ 1,167,348.97
Council Payroll May 14, 2020 4,185.76
Federal & State Taxes May 14, 2020 433.79
PERS Retirement (EFT) May 14, 2020 508.94
Net Payroll May 15, 2020 166,932.40
Federal & State Taxes May 15, 2020 41,891.00
PERS Retirement (EFT) May 15, 2020 47,253.75
TOTAL $ 1,428,554.61
DISCUSSION:

Staff certifies that the register of demands has been reviewed for accuracy, that funds are
available to pay the above demands, and that the demands comply with the adopted budget.

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

Not a project as defined by CEQA.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The register of demands for May 9, 2020 through May 22, 2020 reflects total expenditures of
$1,428,554.61 from various City funding sources.

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM # A.2.




June 10, 2020
Register of Demands
Page 2 of 2

WORK PLAN:

N/A
OPTIONS:

e Ratify the register of demands.
e Do not ratify and provide direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council ratify the above register of demands.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Recommendation.

(_Zregory Wade, City Manager

Attachments:

1.  Check Register — Disbursement Fund



PENTAMATION
DATE: 05/26/2020
TIME: 08:43:44

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA
CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash="1011" and transact.ck_date between '20200509 00:00:00.000’ and '20200522 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME

1011 97076
1011 97077
1011 97077
1011 97077
1011 97077
TOTAL CHECK

1011 97078
1011 97079
1011 97079
1011 97079
1011 97079
1011 97079
1011 97079
TOTAL CHECK

1011 97080
1011 97081
1011 97081
1011 97081
TOTAL CHECK

1011 97082
1011 97083
1011 97084
1011 97085
1011 97086
1011 97087
1011 97087
TOTAL CHECK

1011 97088
1011 97088
TOTAL CHECK

1011 97089
1011 97090
1011 97091
1011 97092
1011 97093

05/14/20 4832
05/14/20 5174
05/14/20 5174
05/14/20 5174
05/14/20 5174
05/14/20 5320
05/14/20 5029
05/14/20 5029
05/14/20 5029
05/14/20 5029
05/14/20 5029
05/14/20 5029
05/14/20 3069
05/14/20 3551
05/14/20 3551
05/14/20 3551
05/14/20 3902
05/14/20 2127
05/14/20 5262
05/14/20 2593
05/14/20 1349
05/14/20 11

05/14/20 11

05/14/20 3859
05/14/20 3859
05/14/20 5399
05/14/20 1075
05/14/20 87

05/14/20 5098
05/14/20 5850

AT&T CALNET 3

MEGAN BAVIN
MEGAN BAVIN
MEGAN BAVIN
MEGAN BAVIN

BAYSHORE CONSULTING GROU 55000007750

BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 50900007700
BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 00165006530
BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 00165006560
BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 00165006530
BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 00165006530
BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 00165006560

JOSHUA BLEA

CITY NATIONAL BANK
CITY NATIONAL BANK
CITY NATIONAL BANK

31700007210
32000007220
32000007220

CORODATA RECORDS MANAGEM 00150005150

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVIC 001

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY, IN 12050005460

GOLDFARB & LIPMAN

JIM GREENSTEIN

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-45 001
ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-45 001

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-RH 001
ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-RH 001

INBOUND DESIGN INC.

IRON MOUNTAIN
ISLA VERDE HOA
JOSE GARCIA
MANERI SIGN CO.

26399465580

55000007750

BUDGET UNIT ~ ————- DESCRIPTION-————- SALES TAX
00160006150 9391012275 3/24-4/23 0.00
001 NEW LAW-BAVIN-12/12 0.00
001 WORKSHOP-BAVIN-09/27 0.00
00150005150 WORKSHOP-BAVIN-09/27 0.00
00150005150 NEW LAW-BAVIN-12/12 0.00
0.00
CCA PROF SVC-APR 0.00
F250-OIL/FLTR/BRK PAD 0.00
F250-OIL/FLTR/BRK PAD 0.00
F250-OIL/FLTR/BRK PAD 0.00
CHVY COLRDO-OIL/FILTR 0.00
F150-ABS LIGHT 0.00
F150-ABS LIGHT 0.00
0.00
00165006530 MILEAGE-04/25/20 0.00
ABAG#11-002:06/01 0.00
CHVRON#12-015:06/08 0.00
CHVRON#12-015:06/08 0.00
0.00
RECORDS STRG-MAR 0.00
Q3 SPEC EVENT INSUR 0.00
2003.GAUTSCH-MAR 0.00
9946PRFSVC-MAR 1575-5 0.00
50900007700 2018 GREENBOOK 0.00
ICMA PD 05/14/20 0.00
ICMA PD 05/15/20 0.00
0.00
ICMA PD 05/15/20 0.00
ICMA PD 05/12/20 0.00
0.00
SEA WEBSITE MANT-MAY 0.00
00150005150 RECORDS STRG-APR 0.00
20575007530 LNDSCAPE MAINT-APR 0.00
00165006540 MILAGE 05/02/20 0.00
20265006540 ST REGULTRY SIGNS 0.00

PAGE NUMBER: 1
ACCTPA21

AMOUNT

164.69
-318.00
-50.00
61.02
373.68
66.70
3,825.00
395.99
395.99
395.99
42.93
77.93
77.93
1,386.76
28.75
7,191.00
8,423.74
26,763.27
42,378.01
338.05
638.34
75.00
354.00
204.72
7,543.88
13,222.36
20,766.24
2,018.69
121.01
2,139.70
49.00
359.60
425.00
36.80

3,204.26

ATTACHMENT 1



kvinson
Stamp


PENTAMATION
DATE: 05/26/2020
TIME: 08:43:44

PAGE NUMBER: 2

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA

ACCTPA21

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash="1011" and transact.ck_date between '20200509 00:00:00.000’ and '20200522 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME

1011 97093
TOTAL CHECK
1011 97094
1011 97094
1011 97094
1011 97094
1011 97094
TOTAL CHECK
1011 97095
1011 97095
TOTAL CHECK
1011 97096
1011 97096
1011 97096
1011 97096
TOTAL CHECK
1011 97097
1011 97097
1011 97097
1011 97097
1011 97097
1011 97097
1011 97097
1011 97097
TOTAL CHECK
1011 97098
1011 97099
1011 97100
1011 97101
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103
1011 97103

05/14/20 5850

05/14/20 111
05/14/20 111
05/14/20 111
05/14/20 111
05/14/20 111

05/14/20 1377
05/14/20 1377

05/14/20 5608
05/14/20 5608
05/14/20 5608
05/14/20 5608

05/14/20 4797
05/14/20 4797
05/14/20 4797
05/14/20 4797
05/14/20 4797
05/14/20 4797
05/14/20 4797
05/14/20 4797

05/14/20 4080
05/14/20 257
05/14/20 86
05/14/20 88

05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141
05/14/20 141

BUDGET UNIT  ————- DESCRIPTION—————- SALES TAX AMOUNT
MANERI SIGN CO. 20265006540 ST REG SIGNS-SALES TAX 0.00 248.40
0.00 3,452.66
MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM 21100007600 LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS 0.00 2.63
MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM 00165006520 LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS 0.00 7.06
MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM 50900007700 LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS 0.00 10.54
MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM 00165006560 LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS 0.00 11.85
MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM 00165006530 LAUNDRY-PUB WORKS 0.00 21.08
0.00 53.16
ONE DAY SIGNS 00165006530  BEACH/PARK SIGNS 0.00 659.97
ONE DAY SIGNS 00165006560  BEACH/PARK SIGNS 0.00 659.97
0.00 1,319.94
PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI 00165006570  DRINKING WATER-PW-APR 0.00 5.00
PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI 00165006570  DRINKING WATER-CH-APR 0.00 7.99
PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI 00165006570  DRINKING WATER-CH-APR 0.00 31.00
PALOMAR MTN PREMIUM SPRI 00165006570  DRINKING WATER-PW-APR 0.00 32.80
0.00 76.79
PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550  1717.42/456 S. NARDO 0.00 250.00
PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550  1717.47/127-129 N GRA 0.00 250.00
PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550  1718.07/231 N GRANA 0.00 250.00
PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550  1718.23/431 MARVIEW 0.00 250.00
PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550  DRP19006/838 ACADEMY 0.00 300.00
PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550 DRP19009/520 N CEDROS 0.00 300.00
PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550 DRP19011/608 N. RIOS 0.00 300.00
PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550  DRP19009/520 N CEDROS 0.00 450.00
0.00 2,350.00
JENNIFER REED 00150005350  ADMIN SVC-APR 0.00 506.00
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 00160006110  FY20 CAL ID Q1 & Q2 0.00 1,377.00
SAN ELIJO HILLS I HOA 20775007550  LNDSCAPE MAINT-APR 0.00 6,550.00
SANTA FE HILLS HOA 20475007520 LNDSCAPE MAINT-APR 0.00 16,250.00
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520  GRP 6—-01 04/02-05/01 0.00 2,048.95
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506000 0303-050120 0.00 147.74
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506001 0303-050120 0.00 74.42
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506002 0303-050120 0.00 339.77
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20875007580 005506003 0303-050120 0.00 123.45
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506004 0303—-050120 0.00 74.42
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506005 0303-050120 0.00 154.00
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506006 0303-050120 0.00 117.34
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506007 0303—-050120 0.00 87.70
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006570 005506008 0303—-050120 0.00 291.27
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506009 0303-050120 0.00 74.42
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506010 0303-050120 0.00 111.95
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506011 0303-050120 0.00 271.87
SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506012 0303-050120 0.00 718.07



PENTAMATION
DATE: 05/26/2020
TIME: 08:43:44

PAGE NUMBER: 3

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA
CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

ACCTPA21

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash="1011" and transact.ck_date between '20200509 00:00:00.000’ and '20200522 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT  ————- DESCRIPTION—————- SALES TAX AMOUNT
1011 97103 05/14/20 141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506013 0303-050120 0.00 102.25

1011 97103 05/14/20141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20375007510 005979000 0303-050120 0.00 117.34

1011 97103 05/14/20 141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005979001 0303—-050120 0.00 108.39

1011 97103 05/14/20 141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 012448000 0303-050120 0.00 130.83

1011 97103 05/14/20 141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 012448001 0303-050120 0.00 85.33

1011 97103 05/14/20 141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506018 0402—-050120 0.00 194.29

1011 97103 05/14/20 141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560 005506019 0402-050120 0.00 190.66

1011 97103 05/14/20 141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20875007580 005506020 0402-050120 0.00 622.34

1011 97103 05/14/20141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006520 005506014 04/02-05/01 0.00 261.81

1011 97103 05/14/20 141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 50900007700 005506014 04/02-05/01 0.00 785.41

1011 97103 05/14/20 141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520 005979030 02/15-04/16 0.00 217.48

1011 97103 05/14/20141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006550 011695000 04/02-05/01 0.00 72.86

1011 97103 05/14/20 141  SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006530 011695000 04/02-05/01 0.00 121.43

TOTAL CHECK 0.00 7,645.79

1011 97104 05/14/20 3066 SUMMIT ENVIRONMENTAL GRO 45099266190 9926 PROF SVC SND-APR 0.00 2,185.00
1011 97105 05/14/20 4534 TRAFFIC SUPPLY, INC 00165006540  STEEL U-CHANNEL POST 0.00 394.14

1011 97105 05/14/20 4534 TRAFFIC SUPPLY, INC 00165006540  SEAWALL STAIRS SIGNS 0.00 719.77

TOTAL CHECK 0.00 1,113.91

1011 97106 05/14/20 40 UNDERGROUND SVC ALERT OF 00165006510  DIG ALERT-APR 0.00 71.05

1011 97106 05/14/20 40 UNDERGROUND SVC ALERT OF 00165006510  CA ST REGLRTY-APR 0.00 36.45
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 107.50

1011 97107 05/14/20 5509 VALLEY CONSTRUCTON MANAG 50998336510  9833PMP STN MNGMT-APR 0.00 9,152.50
1011 97108 05/14/20 4844 WARWICK GROUP CONSULTANT 45099266190  9926.20 PROF SVC-APR 0.00 5,375.00
1011 97109 05/21/20 4706 24 HOUR ELEVATOR, INC 00165006570 ELVTR MAINT-MAY 0.00 160.00

1011 97110 05/21/205137 ABLE PATROL & GUARD, INC 00170007110 FCCC SECURITY-MAR 0.00 150.00
1011 97111 05/21/20 1135 AFFORDABLE PIPELINE SERV 50900007700 = C-SEWER CLEAN-19,422 0.00 9,711.00
1011 97112 05/21/205029 BILL SMITH FOREIGN CAR S 00160006170  FRNTR-HTR/CLTCH/COLNT 0.00 529.17
1011 97113 05/21/205822 CALIFORNIA OFFICE CLEANI 00170007110  SPC EVNT CLN-03/07/20 0.00 90.00

1011 97114 05/21/205871 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 001 RFND-ENC19-0026/502 M 0.00 530.00

1011 97115 05/21/205171 CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS, LLC 00155005550 PROPERTY PRO DATA-MAY 0.00 96.83
1011 97116 05/21/20 848 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER A 00165006510 = SAMMAK-RNWL-ENG 0.00 57.50
1011 97116 05/21/20 848 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER A 50900007700 = SAMMAK-RNWL-ENG 0.00 57.50
1011 97116 05/21/20 848 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER A 00165006510 = GREENSTEIN-RNWL-ENG 0.00 57.50
1011 97116 05/21/20 848 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER A 50900007700 = GREENSTEIN-RNWL-ENG 0.00 57.50
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 230.00

1011 97117 05/21/20 269 DUDEK & ASSOCIATES INC. 50998336510 9833 PUMP STN-PHS-APR 0.00 1,035.00
1011 97118 05/21/20 5868 EXTRA GRAPHIC SCREEN PRI 25560006180  JR GUARD UNIFRM FY20 0.00 2,042.50



PENTAMATION
DATE: 05/26/2020
TIME: 08:43:44

PAGE NUMBER: 4
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA ACCTPA21

CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash="1011" and transact.ck_date between '20200509 00:00:00.000’ and '20200522 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT ~ ————- DESCRIPTION—————- SALES TAX AMOUNT
1011 97119 05/21/205872 KAREN NICHOLAS 001 RFND-SBGR-381/236 PAT 0.00 50,266.52

1011 97120 05/21/20 4738 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES 001 EE -APR 20 0.00 -11.30

1011 97120 05/21/20 4738 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES 00150005400 ROUNDING-MAY 20 0.00 -0.23

1011 97120 05/21/20 4738 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES 00150005400 ROUNDING-APR 20 0.00 -0.23

1011 97120 05/21/20 4738 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES 001 EE -MAY 20 0.00 11.29

1011 97120 05/21/20 4738 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES 001 EE -MAY 20 0.00 20.33

1011 97120 05/21/20 4738 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES 001 VISION MAY 20 0.00 432.11

1011 97120 05/21/20 4738 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES 001 VISION APR 20 0.00 452.45

TOTAL CHECK 0.00 904.42

1011 97121 05/21/20 5407 PJ CASTORENA, INC. 55000007750  CCA WKLY ENR 4/28&5/5 0.00 78.72

1011 97122 05/21/20 4522 NISSHO OF CALIFORNIA 00165006530 STREET LNDSCP SVC-APR 0.00 1,827.00
1011 97122 05/21/20 4522 NISSHO OF CALIFORNIA 00165006560 PRKS LNDSCP SVC-APR 0.00 11,625.14
1011 97122 05/21/20 4522 NISSHO OF CALIFORNIA 00165006570 PUBFAC LNDSCP SVC-APR 0.00 2,509.06
1011 97122 05/21/20 4522 NISSHO OF CALIFORNIA 20375007510  MID#33 LNDSCP SVC-APR 0.00 2,678.26
1011 97122 05/21/20 4522 NISSHO OF CALIFORNIA 20875007580 CRT LNDSCP SVC-APR 0.00 3,396.52
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 22,035.98

1011 97123 05/21/20 5869 PATRICIA SULLIVAN 001 RFND-6/14/20 FCCC 0.00 96.39

1011 97123 05/21/20 5869 PATRICIA SULLIVAN 001 RFND-6/14/20 FCCC 0.00 980.00

TOTAL CHECK 0.00 1,076.39

1011 97124 05/21/20 1087 PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD 001 EE TIMING APR 20 0.00 -43.50

1011 97124 05/21/20 1087 PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD 001 EE TIMING APR 20 0.00 -19.40

1011 97124 05/21/20 1087 PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD 001 EE TIMING MAY 20 0.00 19.40

1011 97124 05/21/20 1087 PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD 001 EE TIMING MAY 20 0.00 43.50

1011 97124 05/21/20 1087 PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD 001 EE TIMING APR 20 0.00 134.90

1011 97124 05/21/20 1087 PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD 001 DENTAL MAY 20 0.00 2,826.50

1011 97124 05/21/20 1087 PREFERRED BENEFIT INS AD 001 DENTAL APR 20 0.00 2,826.50

TOTAL CHECK 0.00 5,787.90

1011 97125 05/21/20 257  SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 001 CR TOW FEE-FEB 0.00 -164.13

1011 97125 05/21/20 257  SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 001 CR TOW FEE-JAN 0.00 -109.42

1011 97125 05/21/20 257  SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 00160006110 LAW ENFORCEMENT-FEB 0.00 359,062.74
1011 97125 05/21/20 257  SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 00160006110 LAW ENFORCEMENT-JAN 0.00 359,062.74
1011 97125 05/21/20 257  SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 21960006110 LAW ENFORCEMENT-JAN 0.00 8,333.33
1011 97125 05/21/20 257  SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF 21960006110 LAW ENFORCEMENT-FEB 0.00 8,333.33
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 734,518.59

1011 97126 05/21/20169 SDG&E CO INC 55000007750 SEA CCA SVC-MAR 0.00 2,284.73

1011 97127 05/21/20 3909 SECTRAN SECURITY INC 12050005460  COURIER SVC-APR 0.00 113.37

1011 97127 05/21/20 3909 SECTRAN SECURITY INC 12050005460 COURIER SVC-MAY 0.00 113.37

1011 97127 05/21/20 3909 SECTRAN SECURITY INC 12050005460 COURIER SVC FUEL-MAY 0.00 15.25
1011 97127 05/21/20 3909 SECTRAN SECURITY INC 12050005460  COURIER SVC FUEL-APR 0.00 16.95
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 258.94

1011 97128 05/21/20 156  SHARP REES-STEALY MEDICA 00150005400 PRE-EMPLOYMENT SCREEN 0.00 458.00



PENTAMATION
DATE: 05/26/2020
TIME: 08:43:44

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA
CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

PAGE NUMBER: 5

ACCTPA21

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash="1011" and transact.ck_date between '20200509 00:00:00.000’ and '20200522 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT  ————- DESCRIPTION—————- SALES TAX AMOUNT
1011 97129 05/21/20 5704 THE HOME DEPOT PRO 00165006560  COVID19 BLEACH/LINERS 0.00 95.84
1011 97129 05/21/20 5704 THE HOME DEPOT PRO 00165006530  BLEACH/LINERS 0.00 781.30

TOTAL CHECK 0.00 877.14

1011 97130 05/21/205870 TINKERGARTEN 001 RFD-LC FLD 1/30-3/28 0.00 126.00

1011 97131 05/21/20 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 00165006530  NEW PHONES-PW 0.00 177.88

1011 97131 05/21/20 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 00165006560 = NEW PHONES-PW 0.00 177.89

1011 97131 05/21/20 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 21100007600  PW CELL 04/02-05/01 0.00 4.17

1011 97131 05/21/20 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 50900007700  PW CELL 04/02-05/01 0.00 4.17

1011 97131 05/21/20 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 00165006540  PW CELL 04/02-05/01 0.00 16.68

1011 97131 05/21/20 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 00165006560  PW CELL 04/02-05/01 0.00 16.68

1011 97131 05/21/20 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 00165006510  PW CELL 04/02-05/01 0.00 20.85

1011 97131 05/21/20 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 00165006520  PW CELL 04/02-05/01 0.00 20.85

1011 97131 05/21/20 30 VERIZON WIRELESS-SD 00165006530  PW CELL 04/02-05/01 0.00 20.85

TOTAL CHECK 0.00 460.02

1011 97132 05/21/20 2189  WILLDAN 67185008510 RVN BND BRBRA/GRNDS 0.00 750.00

1011 97132 05/21/20 2189  WILLDAN 67285008520 RVN BND PACIFIC 0.00 250.00

TOTAL CHECK 0.00 1,000.00

1011 97133 05/21/20 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350  EXCESS BLK-2/21-3/01 0.00 39.12

1011 97133 05/21/20 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350 EXCESS CLR-2/21-3/01 0.00 656.37

1011 97133 05/21/20 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350  W7830PT UPSTRS-MAR 0.00 42.07
1011 97133 05/21/20 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350  W7830PT UPSTRS-APR 0.00 42.07
1011 97133 05/21/20 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350  D95CP PLNG LEASE-MAR 0.00 58.88
1011 97133 05/21/20 37 XEROX CORPORATION 00150005350 D95CP PLNG LEASE-APR 0.00 58.88
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 897.39

1011 V9000114 05/14/20 2260 REDFLEX TRAFFIC SYSTEMS, 00165006540  RED LIGHT CAMERA-APR 0.00 7,158.00
1011 V9000115 05/14/20 13 SOLANA BEACH FIREFIGHTER 001 FD DUES PD 05/12/20 0.00 50.00

1011 V9000115 05/14/20 13 SOLANA BEACH FIREFIGHTER 001 FD DUES PD 05/15/20 0.00 863.50
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 913.50

1011 V9000116 05/14/20 4465 SUN LIFE FINANCIAL 001 APR 20 SUPP LIFE INS 0.00 454.80

1011 V9000116 05/14/20 4465 SUN LIFE FINANCIAL 001 APR 20 LIFE&ADD INS 0.00 1,181.18

1011 V9000116 05/14/20 4465 SUN LIFE FINANCIAL 001 APR 20 LTD 0.00 1,633.03

TOTAL CHECK 0.00 3,269.01

1011 V9000117 05/21/20 1130 MCDOUGAL LOVE ECKIS SMIT 12050005460  CLM.1904 PE 02/29/20 0.00 2,266.96
1011 V9000118 05/21/20 5527 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 50998336510 9833 SB PMP STN-APR 0.00 165,127.10
1011 V9000118 05/21/20 5527 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 50998336510 9833 PMP STN RTN-APR 0.00 8,690.90
1011 V9000118 05/21/20 5527 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 50998336510 9833 PMP STN CONT-APR 0.00 22,257.55
1011 V9000118 05/21/20 5527 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 50998336510 9833PMP STN CN RT-APR 0.00 1,171.45
1011 V9000118 05/21/20 5527 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 509 9833 PMP STN RTN-APR 0.00 -8,690.90
1011 V9000118 05/21/20 5527 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 509 9833PMP STN CN RT-APR 0.00 -1,171.45
TOTAL CHECK 0.00 187,384.65

TOTAL CASH ACCOUNT

0.00 1,167,348.97



PENTAMATION PAGE NUMBER: 6
DATE: 05/26/2020 CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA ACCTPA21
TIME: 08:43:44 CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.gl_cash="1011" and transact.ck_date between '20200509 00:00:00.000’ and '20200522 00:00:00.000’

ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/20

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT VENDOR NAME BUDGET UNIT  ————- DESCRIPTION—————- SALES TAX
TOTAL FUND 0.00 1,167,348.97

TOTAL REPORT 0.00 1,167,348.97

AMOUNT



STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: June 10, 2020
ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance
SUBJECT: Report on Changes Made to the General Fund Adopted

Budget for Fiscal Year 2019/20

BACKGROUND:

Staff provides a report at each Council meeting that lists changes made to the current
Fiscal Year (FY) General Fund Adopted Budget.

The information provided in this Staff Report lists the changes made through May 27,
2020.

DISCUSSION:

The following table reports the revenue, expenditures, and transfers for 1) the Adopted
General Fund Budget approved by Council on June 12, 2019 (Resolution 2019-085) and
2) any resolutions passed by Council that amended the Adopted General Fund Budget.

GENERAL FUND - ADOPTED BUDGET PLUS CHANGES
As of May 27, 2020

Transfers

Action Description Revenues Expenditures from GF Net Surplus
Reso 2019-085 Adopted Budget 19,357,000 (19,141,500) (151,100) (1) $ 64,400
Reso 2020-026 FY2019/20 656,100 (502,700) - 217,800

r
Reso 2020-063 Tyler Munis 199,250 - (199,250) (2) 217,800
Reso 2020-076 COVID-19 Budget Impact (1,047,900) 467,400 - (362,700)

(1) Transfers to:

Debt Senvice for Public Facilities 151,100
151,100

(2) Transfer to: 199,250
Asset Replacement 199,250

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

Not a project as defined by CEQA

COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM # B.3.



June 10, 2020
General Fund Budget Changes -FY 2020
Page 2 of 2

FISCAL IMPACT:

N/A

WORK PLAN:

N/A

OPTIONS:

Receive the report.
Do not accept the report

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council receive the report listing changes made to the
FY 2019-2020 General Fund Adopted Budget.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Recommendation

;
- * F

Gregory Wade, City Manager




STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers

FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: June 10, 2020

ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance

SUBJECT: Council Consideration of Resolution 2020-072 Adopting

the Fiscal Year 2020/21 Fire Benefit Fee

BACKGROUND

On April 8, 1980, voters in the Solana Beach Fire Protection District (District) approved a Fire
Benefit Fee (Fee) by more than a two-thirds vote in an amount not to exceed $10.00 per unit
of benefit per year, on real property within the boundaries of the District. The District was
subsequently merged with the City of Solana Beach (City), and the City now has the
responsibility of administering this Fee. Because the Fee was adopted by the voters before
the passage of Proposition 218, it is not subject to its requirements.

There is no legal requirement for a public hearing, however, the City has published a “Notice
of Setting the Fire Benefit Fee” (Notice) to notify residents that they have the right to request
that this item be removed from the consent agenda for discussion. The Notice was published
in the local newspaper on May 29, 2020.

This item is before Council to consider approval of Resolution 2020-072 which sets the Fire
Benefit Fee and authorizes the fee to be placed on the County Assessment rolls.

DISCUSSION

Each year, the City Council is required to formally set the Fire Benefit Fee for levying on
the tax roll. Staff is recommending that the Fee remain at the same level for Fiscal Year
(FY) 2020/21 at $10.00 per benefit unit. This Fee has not been increased since it was
approved by voters in 1980. In order to increase the Fire Benefit Fee, the City would need
a public vote with two-thirds of the voters approving any increase.

Properties in the City would be charged an annual amount for the Fire Benefit Fee at
$10.00 per benefit unit according to the schedule outlined on the next page.

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM # A 4.




June 10, 2020
FY 2020/21 Fire Benefit Fee

Page 2 of 2

ACTUAL LAND USE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF UNITS OF BENEFIT
Unimproved 2 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre,

up to 20 units per parcel
Residential 5 units per dwelling unit
Commercial 15 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre
Industrial 20 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre
Timeshares 1 unit per timeshare week (1/5 of residential)

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:
Not a project as defined by CEQA.

FISCAL IMPACT

The $10.00 per benefit unit fee raises approximately $440,000 per year that is used to assist
in funding Fire Department operating expenses projected at $5,283,200 for FY 2020/21.

WORK PLAN:
N/A

OPTIONS:

e Approve Staff recommendation.
e Do not approve Staff recommendation and provide direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council consider adoption of Resolution 2020-072:
1. Setting the FY 2020/21 Fire Benefit Fee at $10.00 per unit, and

2. Approving the Fee for levying on the tax roll.

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION

Approve Department Recommendation.

y)LCr ] ——

C_i/egory Wadé, City Manager
Attachments:

1. Resolution 2020-072



RESOLUTION 2020-072

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING THE
FISCAL YEAR 2020/21 FIRE BENEFIT FEE AS
AUTHORIZED BY THE VOTERS AT $10.00 PER BENEFIT
UNIT

WHEREAS, the City of Solana Beach has merged with the Solana Fire
Protection District; and

WHEREAS, the voters of the Solana Fire Protection District on April 8, 1980,
approved the following proposition:

Shall the Solana Fire Protection District establish and impose standby
or availability charges, not to exceed $10.00 per unit of benefit per
year, on all real property (except that of federal, state, or local
governmental agencies) within the boundaries of said Fire Protection
District, the collection of which charges shall not decrease the
appropriations limit of said Fire Protection District in any year for a
period of four years from the effective date hereof, and which charges
shall be established by the Board of Directors of said Fire Protection
District from time to time, subject, however, to the following maximum
units of benefit:

Actual Land Use Maximum Number of Units of Benefit

Unimproved 2 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre,
up to 20 units per parcel

Residential 5 units per dwelling unit

Commercial 15 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre

Industrial 20 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre;
and

Timeshares 1 unit per timeshare week (1/5 of residential)

WHEREAS, the City of Solana Beach, as successor to the Solana Fire
Protection District, is authorized to continue to levy the fire benefit fee; and

WHEREAS, the amount of the fire benefit fee remains unchanged.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach,

ATTACHMENT 1



kvinson
Stamp


Resolution 2020-072
FY 2020/21 Fire Benefit Fee
Page 2 of 2

California, resolves as follows:

1.

2.

The foregoing recitations are true and correct.

The fire benefit charge is hereby set at $10.00 per benefit unit for all
land use categories set forth above, as confirmed by this Board and
will be filed with the Auditor and Controller of the County of San
Diego.

The San Diego County Auditor shall place on the County
Assessment Roll, opposite each parcel of land, the amount of levy
so apportioned by the method of apportionment formula, as set
forth above, and such levies shall be collected at the same time and
in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes of the
City for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2019.

The City Clerk’'s Designee, Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, is
hereby authorized and directed to file the levy with the San Diego
County Auditor subsequent to the adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10" day of June 2020, at a regularly
scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by
the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers —
NOES: Councilmembers —
ABSENT: Councilmembers —
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers —

JEWEL EDSON, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk



STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: June 10, 2020
ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance
SUBJECT: Council Consideration of Resolution 2020-067 Through

2020-070 Approving the Fiscal Year (FY) Municipal
Improvement Districts Benefit (MID) Fees

BACKGROUND:

The four Municipal Improvement Districts (MIDs) in Solana Beach were originally formed
pursuant to Government Code Section 25210.1 as County Service Areas (CSAS) prior to
the incorporation of the City. The CSAs were formed by the County Board of Supervisors
on the following dates:

Date Established

MID No. 9C- Santa Fe Hills 03-24-69
MID No. 33-  Highway 101/Railroad Right-of-Way 08-03-71
MID No. 9E- Isla Verde 12-18-74
MID No. 9H- San Elijo #2 10-10-77

Upon formation, the County also entered into landscaping and maintenance agreements
with the homeowners associations and members of these CSAs under which the County
provided various extended services and these CSAs provided a means to fund the
extended services, which included landscaping and maintenance of streets, medians,
slopes, certain drainage facilities, and appurtenant improvements in various areas of the
County. These CSAs were further established so that local property owners within the
prescribed boundaries of the special districts would be provided extended services.

After the landscaping and maintenance agreements with the County expired according to
their terms, the CSAs functioned more like pass through entities, with the homeowners
associations performing the services and getting reimbursed from the benefit fees (with
the exception of MID No. 33). The property owners share the cost of the maintenance
through service charges based on the benefit received. Upon incorporation, the City took
over the management of the benefit fee assessments for these MIDs.

This item is before the Council to consider approval of the attached resolutions which set

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM #A.5.




June 10, 2020
FY 2020/21 MID Benefit Fees
Page 2 of 4

the benefit fees for the four MIDs and authorize the fees to be placed on the County
Assessor Rolls.

DISCUSSION:

When the CSAs were formed, property owners within the boundary of the service area
desired these extended miscellaneous services. These services were benefits received
by the property owners and not originally supported by general revenues of the County.
They are also not supported by the City’s General Fund.

These service areas were established as an alternate means of providing landscape
maintenance services. The homeowners’ associations contract with a private landscape
contractor to provide the actual landscaping services.

As a result of the City’s July 1, 1986 incorporation, the CSAs were dissolved and replaced
by the new "Municipal Improvement Districts.” As part of the incorporation process, the
City Council assumed the role of the Board of Supervisors for the new MIDs. The City has
managed the MIDs since incorporation.

With the exception of MID No. 33, the City provides three of the four districts with
budgetary information on which the annual fees are based. The City provides a service
to these homeowners’ associations by translating each budget into a unit cost per parcel,
and then levying the required amount on the tax roll each year. The City also performs
monthly inspections of the landscaping work and responds to complaints and inquiries.

The City receives a fee for providing the services to set and collect the landscape
maintenance fee, conduct a monthly landscape inspection, track the income and interest
earnings, process monthly payments, and compile the annual accounting information and
provide it to the homeowners’ associations. The City also reviews each budget to ensure
that all charges are related to the provision of extended services or administration of the
MIDs.

MID No. 33 is the only MID for which services are not provided by a homeowners’
association. The oversight responsibility for the landscape maintenance is provided by
the City's Public Works Department. A budget is produced each year by the City to
provide funds for landscape maintenance within the service area. The assessment area
for MID No. 33 includes all parcels west of Interstate 5 to the Pacific Ocean and from the
San Elijo Lagoon south to Via de la Valle.

The MID No. 33 service area was authorized in order to provide landscape improvement
and maintenance for Highway 101 medians and the railroad right-of-way that is
appurtenant to Highway 101. These landscaped medians were installed using funding
provided by the County for select system roads which also require continued
maintenance. MID No. 33 provides an alternate funding source for this public service in
Solana Beach; however, this revenue is significantly less than the actual costs to maintain



June 10, 2020
FY 2020/21 MID Benefit Fees
Page 3 of 4

these areas. The maintenance is provided under contract with a landscape maintenance
contractor as well as City Staff.

Because the MIDs were created prior to Proposition 218, the MID charges for MID No.
9C, No. 9E, No. 9H, and No. 33 may be levied as proposed without additional
requirements so long as the amount of the charge does not exceed pre-November 1996
levels. The charges proposed are at the same rates they were since their inception and
are not being raised.

Since there is no legal requirement for a public hearing, the City has instead published a
“Notice of Setting Various Fees for the Municipal Improvement Districts” notifying residents
that they have the right to request that this item be removed from the consent agenda for
discussion if required. That notice was published in the local newspaper on May 29, 2020.
In addition, emails were sent to the President of each Homeowner’'s Association notifying
them that the hearing to set the annual MID fees and place on the tax roll was scheduled
for June 10, 2020.

Staff therefore recommends that the City Council approve the annual fees as outlined in
the attached resolutions as follows: for MID No. 9C (Santa Fe Hills) at $232.10 per unit;
MID No. 9E (Isla Verde) at $68.74 per unit; for MID No. 9H (San Elijo Hills #2) at $289.58
per unit; and for MID No. 33 at $3.12 per unit ($.06 per timeshare week).

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

Not a project as defined by CEQA.

FISCAL IMPACT

The fee for each MID will generate the total annual benefit charge revenue, as shown
below, to service the MID:

FEE REVENUE
MID No. 9C - Santa Fe Hills $232.10 per unit $317,700
MID No. 9E - Isla Verde $ 68.74 per unit $ 6,000
MID No. 9H - San Elijo Hills #2 $289.58 per unit $118,300
MID No. 33 - Highway 101/Railroad Right-of-Way $ 3.12 per unit $142,900
WORK PLAN:
N/A
OPTIONS:

e Approve Staff recommendation.
e Do not approve Staff recommendation and provide direction.



June 10, 2020
FY 2020/21 MID Benefit Fees
Page 4 of 4

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council:

1. Approve Resolution 2020-067, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9C,
Santa Fe Hills, at $232.10 per unit for FY 2020/21.

2. Approve Resolution 2020-068, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9E,
Isla Verde, at $68.74 per unit for FY 2020/21.

3. Approve Resolution 2020-069, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9H,
San Elijo Hills # 2, at $289.58 per unit for FY 2020/21.

4. Approve Resolution 2020-070, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 33,
Highway 101/Railroad Right-of-Way, at $3.12 per unit for FY 2020/21.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION

Approve Department Recommendation.

(}(egory Wade,-City Manager

Attachments:

e N S

Resolution 2020-067
Resolution 2020-068
Resolution 2020-069
Resolution 2020-070



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-067

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, SETTING THE
BENEFIT CHARGES FOR MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT NUMBER 9C FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020/21

WHEREAS, the City Council considered a report concerning the benefit charge to
be levied within the Municipal Improvement District Number 9C, Santa Fe Hills (the
“District”) pursuant to an Ordinance previously approved by the voters on March 24, 1969;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that charges for landscape
maintenance service be shown as a separate item on property tax bills and collected at
the same time and in the same manner as ordinary county ad valorem taxes and caused
to be prepared and filed, written reports describing real property receiving landscape
maintenance services within the District; and

WHEREAS, the charges for the parcels within the District for Fiscal Year 2020/21
have been computed in conformity with the procedure set forth in, and charges described
by, applicable ordinances and resolutions of the Solana Beach City Council; and

WHEREAS, the charges are at the same rates they were since their inception and
are not being raised; and

WHEREAS, the amount paid to the homeowners’ association from charges or
taxes levied in the District shall include the reasonably estimated cost of the work or
improvement to be done in the District by the homeowners’ association for the ensuing
fiscal year, plus incidental expenses directly related to the provision of extended services
or administration of the District; and

WHEREAS, services shall be provided by the homeowners' association in
accordance with the contract last approved by the County of San Diego with the
homeowners’ association providing the services, not the County or other entity. The City
of Solana Beach will continue providing management and inspection services; and

WHEREAS, payments to the homeowners’ association for service shall be made
in twelve equal monthly installments and payment for incidental expenses shall be made
upon submission of a statement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California,
resolves as follows:

ATTACHMENT 1



Resolution No. 2020-067
FY 2020/21 MID - #9C Benefit Fee
Page 2 of 2

1. The foregoing recitations are true and correct.

2. The benefit unit charge for Municipal Improvement District No. 9C, Santa
Fe Hills, for Fiscal Year 2020/21 will be $232.10 per unit, as listed on
Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution and confirmed by the City Council, and
will be filed with the Auditor and Controller of the County of San Diego.

3. The San Diego County Auditor shall place on the County Assessor Roll,
opposite each parcel of land within the District, the levy amount of $232.10
per unit, as set forth in Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution, and such levies
shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner as ordinary ad
valorem property taxes of the City for the fiscal year commencing July 1,
2020.

4. The City Clerk’'s Designee, Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, is hereby
authorized and directed to file the levy with the San Diego County Auditor
subsequent to the adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10™ day of June 2020, at a regularly scheduled
meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers —
NOES: Councilmembers —
ABSENT: Councilmembers —
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers —

JEWEL EDSON, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk



Exhibit 1
Resolution 2020-067
M.I.D. FEES

2016-2017 through 2020-2021

2016- 2016- 2017- 2017- 2018- 2018- 2019- 2019- 2020- 2020-
2017 2017 2018 2018 2019 2019 2020 2020 2021 2021
BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES
Highway 101 - 107,600 3.12 124,800 3.12 127,000 3.12 140,300 3.12 142,900 3.12
MID No. 33

Santa Fe Hills - 276,500 232.10 300,300 232.10 304,300 232.10 313,200 232.10 317,700 232.10
MID No. 9C

Isla Verde - 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74
MID No. 9E

San Elijo Hills#2 | 99,700 289.58 103,600 289.58 101,000 289.58 116,700 289.58 118,300 289.58

MID No. 9H

ATTACHMENT 1




RESOLUTION 2020-068

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, SETTING THE
BENEFIT CHARGES FOR MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT NUMBER 9E FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020/21

WHEREAS, the City Council considered a report concerning the benefit charge to
be levied within the Municipal Improvement District Number 9E, Isla Verde (the “District”)
pursuant to an Ordinance previously approved by the voters on December 18, 1974; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that charges for landscape
maintenance service be shown as a separate item on property tax bills and collected at
the same time and in the same manner as ordinary county ad valorem taxes and caused
to be prepared and filed, written reports describing real property receiving landscape
maintenance services within the District; and

WHEREAS, the charges for the parcels within the District for Fiscal Year 2020/21
have been computed in conformity with the procedure set forth in, and charges described
by, applicable ordinances and resolutions of the Solana Beach City Council; and

WHEREAS, the charges are at the same rates they were since their inception and
are not being raised; and

WHEREAS, the amount paid to the homeowner’s association from charges or
taxes levied in the District shall include the reasonably estimated cost of the work or
improvement to be done in the District by the homeowner’s association for the ensuing
fiscal year, plus incidental expenses directly related to the provision of extended services
or administration of the District; and

WHEREAS, services shall be provided by the homeowners' association in
accordance with the contract last approved by the County of San Diego with the
homeowners’ association providing the services, not the County or other entity. The City
of Solana Beach will continue providing management and inspection services; and

WHEREAS, payments to the homeowner’s association for service shall be made
in twelve equal monthly installments and payment for incidental expenses shall be made
upon submission of a statement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California,
resolves as follows:

1. The foregoing recitations are true and correct.

ATTACHMENT 2



Resolution No. 2020-068

FY 2020/21 MID - #9E Benefit Fee

Page 2 of 2

2.  The benefit unit charge for Municipal Improvement District No. 9E, Isla

Verde, for Fiscal Year 2020/21 will be $68.74 per unit, as listed on

Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution and confirmed by the City Council,

and will be filed with the Auditor and Controller of the County of San
Diego.

3. The San Diego County Auditor shall place on the County Assessor
Roll, opposite each parcel of land within the District, the levy amount of
$68.74 per unit, as set forth in Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution,
and such levies shall be collected at the same time and in the same
manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes of the City for the fiscal
year commencing July 1, 2020.

4. The City Clerk’s Designee, Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, is
hereby authorized and directed to file the levy with the San Diego
County Auditor subsequent to the adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10" day of June 2020, at a regularly
scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by
the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers —
NOES: Councilmembers —
ABSENT: Councilmembers —
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers —

JEWEL EDSON, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk



Exhibit 1
Resolution 2020-068
M.I.D. FEES

2016-2017 through 2020-2021

2016- 2016- 2017- 2017- 2018- 2018- 2019- 2019- 2020- 2020-
2017 2017 2018 2018 2019 2019 2020 2020 2021 2021
BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES
Highway 101 - 107,600 3.12 124,800 3.12 127,000 3.12 140,300 3.12 142,900 3.12
MID No. 33

Santa Fe Hills - 276,500 232.10 300,300 232.10 304,300 232.10 313,200 232.10 317,700 232.10
MID No. 9C

Isla Verde - 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74
MID No. 9E

San Elijo Hills#2 | 99,700 289.58 103,600 289.58 101,000 289.58 116,700 289.58 118,300 289.58

MID No. 9H

ATTACHMENT 2




RESOLUTION 2020-069

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, SETTING THE
BENEFIT CHARGES FOR MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT NUMBER 9H FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020/21

WHEREAS, the City Council considered a report concerning the benefit charge to
be levied within the Municipal Improvement District Number 9H, San Elijo Hills #2 (the
“District”) pursuant to an Ordinance previously approved by the voters on October 10,
1977; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that charges for landscape
maintenance service be shown as a separate item on property tax bills and collected at
the same time and in the same manner as ordinary county ad valorem taxes and caused
to be prepared and filed, written reports describing real property receiving landscape
maintenance services within the District; and

WHEREAS, the charges for the parcels within the District for Fiscal Year 2020/21
have been computed in conformity with the procedure set forth in, and charges described
by, applicable ordinances and resolutions of the Solana Beach City Council; and

WHEREAS, the charges are at the same rates they were since their inception and
are not being raised; and

WHEREAS, the amount paid to the homeowners’ association from charges or
taxes levied in the District shall include the reasonably estimated cost of the work or
improvement to be done in the District by the homeowner’s association for the ensuing
fiscal year, plus incidental expenses directly related to the provision of extended services
or administration of the District; and

WHEREAS, services shall be provided by the homeowners' association in
accordance with the contract last approved by the County of San Diego with the
homeowners’ association providing the services, not the County or other entity. The City
of Solana Beach will continue providing management and inspection services; and

WHEREAS, payments to the homeowner’s association for service shall be made
in twelve equal monthly installments and payment for incidental expenses shall be made
upon submission of a statement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California,
resolves as follows:

1. The foregoing recitations are true and correct.

ATTACHMENT 3



Resolution No. 2020-069
FY 2020/21 MID - #9H Benefit Fee
Page 2 of 2

2. The benefit unit charge for Municipal Improvement District No. 9H,
San Elijo Hills #2, for Fiscal Year 2020/21 will be $289.58 per unit, as
listed on Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution and confirmed by the
City Council, and will be filed with the Auditor and Controller of the
County of San Diego.

3. The San Diego County Auditor shall place on the County Assessor
Roll, opposite each parcel of land within the District, the levy amount of
$289.58 per unit, as set forth in Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution,
and such levies shall be collected at the same time and in the same
manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes of the City for the fiscal
year commencing July 1, 2020.

4. The City Clerk’s Designee, Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, is
hereby authorized and directed to file the levy with the San Diego
County Auditor subsequent to the adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10™ day of June 2020, at a regularly scheduled
meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers —
NOES: Councilmembers —
ABSENT: Councilmembers —
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers —

JEWEL EDSON, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk



Exhibit 1
Resolution 2020-069
M.I.D. FEES

2016-2017 through 2020-2021

2016- 2016- 2017- 2017- 2018- 2018- 2019- 2019- 2020- 2020-
2017 2017 2018 2018 2019 2019 2020 2020 2021 2021
BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES
Highway 101 - 107,600 3.12 124,800 3.12 127,000 3.12 140,300 3.12 142,900 3.12
MID No. 33

Santa Fe Hills - 276,500 232.10 300,300 232.10 304,300 232.10 313,200 232.10 317,700 232.10
MID No. 9C

Isla Verde - 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74
MID No. 9E

San Elijo Hills#2 | 99,700 289.58 103,600 289.58 101,000 289.58 116,700 289.58 118,300 289.58

MID No. 9H

ATTACHMENT 3



EXHIBIT 1
Resolution 2020-070

M.I.D. FEES

2016-2017 through 2020-2021

2016- 2016- 2017- 2017- 2018- 2018- 2019- 2019- 2020- 2020-
2017 2017 2018 2018 2019 2019 2020 2020 2021 2021
BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES BUDGET FEES
Highway 101 - 107,600 3.12 124,800 3.12 127,000 3.12 140,300 3.12 142,900 3.12
MID No. 33

Santa Fe Hills - 276,500 232.10 300,300 232.10 304,300 232.10 313,200 232.10 317,700 232.10
MID No. 9C

Isla Verde - 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74 6,000 68.74
MID No. 9E

San Elijo Hills#2 | 99,700 289.58 103,600 289.58 101,000 289.58 116,700 289.58 118,300 289.58

MID No. 9H

ATTACHMENT 4



RESOLUTION 2020-070

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, SETTING THE
BENEFIT CHARGES FOR MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT # 33 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020/21

WHEREAS, the City Council considered a report concerning the benefit charge to
be levied within the Municipal Improvement District Number 33, Highway 101/Railroad
Right-of-Way, pursuant to an Ordinance previously approved by the voters on August 3,
1971, and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that charges for providing landscape
maintenance service be shown as a separate item on property tax bills and collected at the
same time and in the same manner as ordinary county ad valorem taxes and caused to be
prepared and filed, written reports describing real property receiving landscape
maintenance services within the District; and

WHEREAS, the charges for the parcels within the District for Fiscal Year 2020/21
have been computed in conformity with the procedure set forth in, and charges described
by, applicable ordinances and resolutions of the Solana Beach City Council; and

WHEREAS, the charges are at the same rates they were since their inception and
are not being raised.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California,
resolves as follows:

1. The foregoing recitations are true and correct.

2. The benefit unit charge for Municipal Improvement District No. 33, Highway
101/Railroad Right-of-Way, for Fiscal Year 2020/21 will be $3.12 per unit, as
listed on Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution and confirmed by the City Councll,
and will be filed with the Auditor and Controller of the County of San Diego.

3. The San Diego County Auditor shall place on the County Assessor Roll,
opposite each parcel of land within the District, the levy amount of $3.12 per
unit, as set forth in Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution, and such levies shall be
collected at the same time and in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem
property taxes of the City for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2020.

4. The City Clerk’s Designee, Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, is hereby
authorized and directed to file the levy with the San Diego County Auditor

ATTACHMENT 4



Resolution 2020-070
FY 2020/21 MID - #33 Benefit Fee
Page 2 of 2

subsequent to the adoption of this Resolution

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10" day of June 2020, at a regularly scheduled
meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers —
NOES: Councilmembers —
ABSENT: Councilmembers —
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers —

JEWEL EDSON, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk



STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: June 10, 2020
ORIGINATING DEPT: City Manager
SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution 2020-079 Adopting the Annual

Sewer Service Charge for Fiscal Year 2020/21

BACKGROUND:

The City of Solana Beach provides for the collection, transportation and treatment of sewage
generated within the community and some properties adjacent to the City boundary in the
cities of Del Mar and San Diego. The City assesses a sewer service charge that covers the
administration, maintenance, debt service and capital costs of the City’s sewer system and
the costs of the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority (SEJPA) for wastewater treatment,
laboratory services, ocean outfall and pump stations.

This item is before the City Council to consider Resolution 2020-079 (Attachment 1) adopting
the Annual Sewer Service Charge for Fiscal Year (FY) 2020/21.

DISCUSSION

Annual sewer rates are collected through the property tax rolls and based on the number of
equivalent dwelling units (EDU) assigned to a property’s structure. A single-family residence
is 1.0 EDU and the FY 2019/20 EDU rate is $682.31 per EDU. At the April 22, 2020 Council
meeting regarding relief measures that could be provided to residents and businesses as
related to the impacts of COVID-19, Council directed Staff to hold sewer rates at the FY
2019/20 level for FY 2020/21.

Staff is recommending that the sewer rate for FY 2020/21 remain at the same amount as for
FY 2019/20 at $682.31/EDU.

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:
Not a project as defined by CEQA

COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM A.6.




June 10, 2020
Sewer Rate for FY 2020/21
Page 2 of 2

FISCAL IMPACT:

Sewer service charges provide the necessary funding for the administration, maintenance,
debt service and capital costs of the City’s Sanitation District, and the costs of the San Elijo
JPA operations, including the wastewater treatment, laboratory services, ocean outfall,
pump stations, capital projects and debt service.

The Adopted Budget for FY 2019/20 and 2020/21 included $5,518,700 and $5,535,800,
respectively, in sewer service charges using the current rate of $682.31/EDU. The FY
2020/21 increase of $17,100 was for potential increases in EDUs in the City. No adjustment
will be required to the FY 2020/21 Adopted Budget if Council maintains the current rate at
$682.31/EDU.

WORK PLAN:
N/A

OPTIONS:

Approve Staff recommendation.
Provide direction to Staff.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution 2020-079 approving the FY
2020/21 Annual Sewer Service Charge at $682.31 per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Recommendation

D277 N

C}’regory Wade, City Manager

Attachment 1. Resolution 2020-079



RESOLUTION 2020-079

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE FISCAL
YEAR 2020/21 ANNUAL SEWER SERVICE CHARGE

WHEREAS, the City each fiscal year sets the annual sewer service charge per
Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU);

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to provide relief measures to residents and
businesses as related to the impacts of COVID-19 by holding sewer rates at the Fiscal
Year (FY) 2019/20 level for FY 2020/21; and

WHEREAS, the City will not increase the sewer charge for FY 2020/21 and it will
remain at $682.31 per EDU.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, does
resolve as follows:

1. That the foregoing recitations are true and correct.

2. That the City Council approves the FY 2020/21 Annual Sewer Service
Charge at $682.31 per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10" day of June 2020, at a regularly scheduled meeting
of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers —
NOES: Councilmembers —
ABSENT: Councilmembers —
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers —

JEWEL EDSON, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk

ATTACHMENT 1



STAFF REPORT
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
Gregory Wade, City Manager

MEETING DATE: June 10, 2020
ORIGINATING DEPT: Community Development Department
SUBJECT: Public Hearing: Request for DRP/SDP/SUB 127-129 N.

Granados Avenue (Case # 17-17-47, Applicant: Granados
Avenue Partners, LLC; Resolution 2020-078)

BACKGROUND:

The Applicant, Granados Avenue Partners, LLC, is requesting Council approval of a
Development Review Permit (DRP), a Structure Development Permit (SDP), and a Minor
Subdivision Tentative Parcel Map (SUB) in order to consolidate two existing parcels to
create a new parcel that is 14,381 square feet in area and construct four detached, single-
family condominium residences, a new driveway entry and associated site improvements.

The original project design was presented to the City Council on November 20, 2019 and
the City Council was unable to make the required findings to approve the project. The
Council asked the Applicant if they would be willing to continue the project to a date
uncertain so that they could address the concerns that were voiced during the Public
Hearing by citizens and by City Council members. The Applicant indicated that they were
willing to continue the project. The Council continued the project with a vote of 4/1 to
continue the project to a date uncertain.

The revised project before the Council has the same project description, however, there
is a reduction in the proposed floor area of each unit and a reduction in the maximum
height of Units 3 and 4. The project meets two thresholds for the requirement of a DRP,
including: 1) an aggregate grading quantity in excess of 100 cubic yards; 2) construction
in excess of 60 percent of the maximum allowable floor area; and 3) a second story that
exceeds 40% of the first story floor area. The project requires a SDP because the proposed
development exceeds 16 feet in height above the existing grade.

The issue before the Council is whether to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
Applicants’ request as contained in Resolution 2020-078 (Attachment 1).

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM #B.1.




June 10, 2020

17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Partners, LLC
127-129 N. Granados Ave.

Page 2 of 6

DISCUSSION:

At the November 20, 2019 Council meeting, the Applicant indicated that they were willing
to address comments and concerns raised during the Public Hearing; therefore, the
hearing was continued to a date uncertain.

The following concerns and suggested corrections were discussed at the November 20,
2019, City Council Public Hearing:

e Eliminate the parking space provided within the required front yard setback.

e Allow for the maximum possible on-street parking in front of the site by relocating
the proposed fire hydrant and reducing the width of the proposed driveway if
possible.

¢ Install decomposed granite (D.G.) between the east property line and the edge of
pavement in order to provide space for a pedestrian walkway and/or on-street
parking.

e Install additional landscaping on the west side of the D.G. path in the front yard
setback area.

e Remove the concrete entry steps for Units 1 and 2 that encroach into the public
right-of-way.

e Increase the width of the garage doors to encourage the occupants to use the
garage space for parking.

e Relocate the trash enclosures and place them in a location that is screened from
the street.

e Plant a tree in place of the trash enclosures. Ensure that the tree chosen would
not obstruct vehicular traffic or views across the lot at planting and maturity.

e Reduce the total amount of hardscape onsite.

e Create articulation on blank walls modeled by Unit 4.

e Add trees to provide screening and to soften the blank walls along the side yard
setback.

e Remove the stone parapets on Units 3 and 4 or reduce the height of the stone
parapet to the height of the proposed roof.

e Eliminate the Balcony on the west side of Unit 3.

e Redesign the window on the west side of Unit 3 to be a clearstory window or a
transom window to provide privacy to the neighbor to the southwest.

¢ Eliminate the vinyl fence and replace it with a wood or wood and masonry fence.

e Work with the neighbor to the northwest to remove the wood fence.

e Ensure that there is a minimum width of five feet clear between the wall of the
building and the face of the wall or fence.

e Construct the proposed driveway out of permeable pavers wherever possible.

¢ Modify the fence along the east side of the proposed bioretention basin so that it
can be used as a seat wall.

The Applicant submitted revised plans to the Community Development Department on
April 16, 2020 to address the comments made at the Public Hearing. The Plans were



June 10, 2020

17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Partners, LLC
127-129 N. Granados Ave.

Page 3 of 6

reviewed by the Planning, Engineering, and Fire Departments and reviewed by the City’s
third party landscape architect. The plans were revised in response to the comments
received by each of the Departments and submitted on May 18, 2020. The final revised
plans have been provided in Attachment 2. The November 20, 2019 Staff Report is
included in Attachment 3 for reference.

The Applicant provided a discussion with pictures depicting how they addressed each of
the concerns listed above and has been provided in Attachment 4.

Structure Development Permit Compliance:

The proposed structures exceed 16 feet in height above the existing grade. Therefore,
the project must comply with the requirements of SBMC Chapter 17.63 View Assessment
and the Applicant was required to complete the SDP process. The initial Story Pole
Height Certification was issued by a licensed land surveyor on December 17, 2018 and
the final amended Height Certification was issued on January 31, 2019. The story pole
height certifications provided show the highest point above Mean Sea Level (MSL) for
each unit as well as the tallest point of each unit as measured above the pre-existing
grade which is as follows:

Unit #: Tallest Point: Max. Height

Unit 1 130.68 MSL 24.99 ft.
Unit 2 128.53 MSL 24.70 ft.
Unit 3 124.25 MSL 24.86 ft.
Unit 4 124.25 MSL 24.86 ft.

Notices were mailed to property owners and occupants within 300 feet of the project site
establishing a deadline to file for View Assessment by March 11, 2019. One application
for View Assessment was received. The Applicant redesigned Unit 3 to lower the overall
height from 24.86 to 22.95 feet and provide a view corridor for the neighbor across the
southwest corner of Unit 3. After reviewing the revised plan, the View Claimant withdrew
their application for View Assessment.

The Applicant redesigned to project to address the comments that were made during the
Public Hearing, Four of these design revisions were outside of the originally story poled
three dimensional envelope.

1. The addition of an angled glass screen wall on the patio on the southwest side of
Unit 3 to provide privacy to the neighboring property to the south.

2. The infill of a notched wall along the south side of Unit 3

3. The increased volume in an area that was originally a recessed corner of the
northeast corner of Unit 3.

4. The Addition of a metal awning on the west side of Unit 4.



June 10, 2020

17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Partners, LLC
127-129 N. Granados Ave.

Page 4 of 6

Technically, this would require the Applicant to modify the story poles and send out an
additional 30-day public notice. The Applicant, however, has submitted a request to the
City Council to waive the requirement for the additional noticing period and their
discussion of this request including pictures is attached (Attachment 5).

In addition, the proposed modifications reduced the maximum height and tallest point on
Unit 3 and the tallest point on Unit 4. The height of Unit 2 appears to have increased
however, the measurement is just being taken from a different location. As a condition of
approval, a height certificate prepared by a licensed land surveyor will be required prior
to the framing inspection certifying that the maximum height of each of the units will not
exceed the highest point above MSL or the tallest point as measured from the lower of
pre-existing or proposed grade as follows:

Previous Design Proposed Design
Unit #: Tallest Point Max. Height Tallest Point Max. Height
Unit 3 124.25 MSL 24.86 ft. 120.93 MSL 23.05 ft.
Unit 4 124.25 MSL 24.86 ft. 122.74 MSL 24.86 ft.

Therefore, if the Council is able to approve the Applicant’s request to waive the additional
SDP process and make the required findings to approve the DRP, the SDP would be
approved administratively.

Conditions from the Planning, Engineering, and Fire Departments have been
incorporated into the updated Resolution of Approval (Attachment 1).

In conclusion, the proposed project, as conditioned, could be found to be consistent with
the Zoning regulations and the General Plan. Should the Council determine that the
findings can be made to approve the project, the SDP will be approved concurrently with
the DRP and SUB.

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to
Section 15303 (New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) of the State CEQA
Guidelines. Class 3 consists of the construction and location of limited numbers of new,
small facilities or structures, installation of small equipment and facilities in small
structures and the conversion of small structures from one use to another where only
minor modification are made in the exterior of the structure. Examples of this exemption
include, but are not limited to:

2. A duplex or similar multi-family residential structure, totaling no more than four
dwelling units. In urbanized areas, this exemption applies to apartments, duplexes
and similar structures designed not for more than six dwelling units.

The proposed project consists of four single-family detached condominium units and the
common ownership of the remainder of the lot.



June 10, 2020

17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Partners, LLC
127-129 N. Granados Ave.

Page 5 of 6

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A

WORK PLAN: N/A

OPTIONS:

e Approve the project as designed at the high end of the density range by adopting
the attached Resolution 2020-78.

e Approve the project subject to additional specific conditions necessary for the City
Council to make all required findings for the approval of a DRP, SDP, and SUB.

e Deny the project if all required findings for the DRP, SDP, and SUB cannot be
made.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

The proposed project meets the minimum objective requirements under the SBMC, could
be found to be consistent with the General Plan and could be found, as conditioned, to
meet the discretionary findings required as discussed in this report to approve a DRP, a
SUB and administratively issue a SDP. Therefore, Staff recommends that the City
Council:

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing; Report Council disclosures;
Receive Public Testimony; Close the Public Hearing;

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Sections 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines;

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, adopt
Resolution 2020-78 conditionally approving a DRP, a SDP, and a Minor SUB for
condominium purposes, to consolidate two existing legal lots into one legal lot of
14,381 square feet, demolish the existing structures onsite, construct four
detached single-family condominium dwelling units, each consisting of two stories
with an attached two-car garage and associated site improvements on property on
the 127-129 North Granados Avenue, Solana Beach.



CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Recommendation.

¢regory Wade, City Manager
Attachments:

agrwnE

Updated Resolution 2020-78

Revised Project Plans

November 20, 2019 Staff Report Package
Applicant Discussion Regarding Revisions
Request for SDP Waiver

June 10, 2020

17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Partners, LLC
127-129 N. Granados Ave.

Page 6 of 6



RESOLUTION 2020-078

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, CONDITIONALLY
APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT,
STRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND MINOR
SUBDIVISION (TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP), TO
CONSOLIDATE TWO LOTS INTO ONE LEGAL LOT,
DEMOLISH THE EXISTING STRUCTURES ONSITE, AND
CONSTRUCT FOUR DETACHED SINGLE-FAMILY
CONDOMINIUMS AND ASSOCIATED SITE IMPROVEMENTS
AT 127-129 NORTH GRANADOS AVENUE.

APPLICANT: Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
CASE NO.: 17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB

WHEREAS, Granados Avenue Partners, LLC, (hereinafter referred to as
“‘Applicant”) has submitted an application for a Development Review Permit (DRP),
Structure Development Permit (SDP), and Minor Subdivision Tentative Parcel Map
(SUB) pursuant to Title 16 (Subdivisions) and Title 17 (Zoning), of the Solana Beach
Municipal Code (SBMC); and

WHEREAS, at the Public Hearing on November 20, 2019, the City Council received
and considered evidence concerning the proposed application; and

WHEREAS, the Public Hearing was conducted pursuant to the provisions of Solana
Beach Municipal Code Section 17.72.030; and

WHEREAS, at the Public Hearing, the City Council was unable to make the findings
necessary to approve the project; and

WHEREAS, the City Council continued the item to a date uncertain to allow the
Applicant time to redesign the project to address the concerns that were raised during
the Public Hearing; and

WHEREAS, at the Public Hearing on June 10, 2020, the City Council received and
considered evidence concerning the proposed application; and

WHEREAS, the Public Hearing was conducted pursuant to the provisions of Solana
Beach Municipal Code Section 17.72.030; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach found the application
request exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Sections
15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

WHEREAS, this decision is based upon the evidence presented at the hearing, and
any information the City Council gathered by viewing the site and the area as disclosed

at the hearing. A 1
TTACHMENT



kvinson
Stamp


Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 2 of 21

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, does
resolve as follows:

1.

2.

That the foregoing recitations are true and correct.

That the project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant
to Sections 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines.

That the request for a Development Review Permit, an administrative Structure
Development Permit, and Minor Subdivision Tentative Parcel Map for the
consolidation of two legal lots into a lot of 14,381 square feet and the
construction of four detached single-family condominiums with private ownership
of each unit and common ownership of the remaining lot, is conditionally
approved based upon the following Findings and subject to the following
Conditions:

FINDINGS

A. In accordance with Section 17.68.040 (Development Review Permit) of the
City of Solana Beach Municipal Code, the City Council finds the following:

I.  The proposed project is consistent with the General Plan and all
applicable requirements of SBMC Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance),
including special regulations, overlay zones and specific plans.

General Plan Consistency: The use is consistent with the General
Plan, which designates the property as Medium High Residential,
which allows 8 to 12 dwelling units per acre. The proposed
development is consistent with the objectives of the General Plan that
encourage the development and maintenance of healthy residential
neighborhoods, the stability of transitional neighborhoods, and the
rehabilitation of deteriorated neighborhoods. In addition, one of the
policies of the land use plan is to include residential land uses
comprising of a range of housing types, locations and densities. The
surrounding properties are also designated Medium High Residential.

Zoning Ordinance Consistency: The property is located within the
Medium High Residential (MHR) Zone, which allows 8-12 dwelling units
per net acre. The density range for the 0.33 net acre parcel is two to
four dwelling units. Per SBMC 17.20.010(E), the MHR Zone is
intended for a wide range of residential development types, including
detached single-family and attached duplexes at the lower end of the
density range and multiple-family attached units at the higher end of
the range. The proposed project is consistent with all applicable
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Title 17), including Chapter 17.20,
which delineates maximum allowable Floor Area Ratio (FAR), Permitted




Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 3 of 21

Uses and Structures for uses of the property as a Multi-Family
Development.

Further, the proposed project adheres to all property development
regulations established for the MHR Zone and cited by SBMC Section
17.20.030. The design of the proposed project is consistent with the
provisions for minimum yard dimensions (i.e., setbacks), minimum
separation between buildings, the maximum FAR, maximum building
height, and parking requirements.

The proposed development complies with the following development
review criteria set forth in Solana Beach Municipal Code Section
17.68.040.F:

a. Relationship with Adjacent Land Uses. The development shall
be designed in a manner compatible with and complementary
to existing development in the immediate vicinity of the project
site and the surrounding neighborhood. The development as
proposed shall also be compatible in scale, apparent bulk, and
massing with such existing development in the surrounding
neighborhood. Site planning on or near the perimeter of the
development shall give consideration to the protection of
surrounding areas from potential adverse effects.

The property is surrounded by a mixture of single and multi-
family development properties to the north, south and west are
located within the MHR Zone and properties to the east are
located within the Low Medium Residential Zone.

The proposed project is consistent with the permitted uses for
the Medium High Residential (MHR) Zone found in SBMC
Sections 17.12.010(D)(1), 17.12.020, and Chapter 17.20. The
MHR Zone allows for 8-12 dwelling units (du) per net acre (ac).
In order to determine the number of units allowed on the
14,381 square foot or 0.33 acre (net) parcel based on the
density range, the following calculation is used:

net lot size in acres x number of dwelling units per acre
= number of units allowed

If the calculation results in a fractional number of 0.7 or greater,
the number of units can be rounded up to the nearest whole
number. The density range for the subject property is as
follows:

MHR Density Range: 8-12 du/ac

Base Density: 8 du/ac | Maximum Density: 12
(net) du/ac (net)




Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 4 of 21

0.33x8du/fac=2.67du | 0.33x12 du/ac =3.96
or2du or4du

The lot area was broken down according to the slope
percentage and the density was adjusted using the high end
of the density range according to table 17.20.030(C) as
follows:

Density Adjustment Multiplier
Slope Density Adjusted Area Number
Range | Adjustment Density (Acre) of Units
% Factor (DU/Net Acre) Permitted
0-25 1.0 12 0.30 3.6
25-40 0.5 12 0.02 0.12
40-100 0 12 0.006 0
Total Units: 3.720r4

The use is also consistent with the General Plan, which
designates the property as Medium High Residential. Policy
LU-2 of the Land Use Element is for the land use plan to
include residential land uses comprising a range of housing
types, locations, and densities. Per SBMC 17.20.010(E), the
MHR Zone is intended for a wide range of residential
development types, including detached single-family and
attached duplexes at the lower end of the density range and
multiple-family attached units at the higher end of the range.
The surrounding properties are also zoned MHR and
designated Medium High Residential.

No adverse effects upon neighboring properties have been
identified or are anticipated to occur from the project
implementation. As conditioned, the proposed project gives
consideration to the protection of surrounding areas from
potential adverse effects and provides protection from adverse
surrounding influences such as negative impacts of light, air,
and noise.

Building and Structure Placement. Buildings and structures shall
be sited and designed to minimize adverse impacts on the
surrounding properties and designed in a manner which visually
and functionally enhance their intended use and complement
existing site topography. Multi-family residential buildings shall be
sited to avoid crowding and to allow for a functional use of the
space between buildings.

The proposed development, as designed, meets the
requirements for setbacks for the property as zoned including



Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 5 of 21

the required setbacks of 5 feet from the interior side property
lines (north and south) and the required 25-foot setback from
the front (eastern) and rear (western) property lines. The
project also meets the required 10-foot minimum separation
between detached single-family units in the MHR Zone.

Each dwelling unit consists of two stories and an attached two-
car garage. Units 1 and 2 are similar in that the first floor
consists of two bedrooms with attached bathrooms, a laundry
closet and an attached two-car garage. The second floor is
made up of an entry area, living room, kitchen, breakfast nook,
powder room and a master suite. There is a balcony proposed
off of the living room area of each unit. Unit 3 would have a
first floor that would consist of a bedroom with and attached
bathroom, the master suite, a laundry closet and the garage.
The second floor would consist of the kitchen, dining room, and
a great room. A balcony is proposed off the great room, with a
privacy screen wall on the south side. Unit 4 would have a first
floor consisting of the garage, entry, office and master suite.
The second floor would consist of two bedrooms with attached
bathrooms, a dining room, living room and kitchen. A balcony
Is proposed along the west side of the second floor. In addition
to the private balconies provided for each unit the proposed
design also provides exclusive outdoor patio area for each unit.

The dwelling units are designed with finished floors below the
street elevation, and Units 1 and 2, which abut the front yard
setback, will appear to be single-story structures from
Granados Avenue and two stories from all other elevations.

The maximum building height for the MHR Zone is 25 feet. The
proposed maximum building height and tallest point (in feet above
Mean Sea Level (MSL)) for each unit is as follows: Unit 1: 24.99 ft.
and 130.68 ft. MSL, Unit 2: 24.70 ft. and 128.53 MSL, Unit 3: 21.93
ft. and 120.93 MSL, and Unit 4: 24.86 ft. and 122.74 MSL

Landscaping: The removal of significant native vegetation shall
be minimized. Replacement vegetation and landscaping shall
be compatible with the vegetation of the surrounding area. To
the maximum extent practicable, landscaping and plantings
shall be used to screen parking areas, storage areas, access
roads, and other service uses of the site. Trees and other large
plantings shall not obstruct significant views when installed or
at maturity. Drought tolerant plant materials and water
conserving irrigation systems shall be incorporated into all
landscaping plans.



Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 6 of 21

The project is subject to the current water efficient landscaping
regulations of SBMC Chapter 17.56. A Landscape
Documentation Package is required for new development
projects with an aggregate landscape equal to or greater than
500 square feet requiring a building permit, plan check or
development review. The Applicant provided a conceptual
landscape plan that has been reviewed by the City’s third-party
landscape architect, who has recommended approval. The
Applicant will be required to submit detailed construction
landscape drawings that will be reviewed by the City’s third-
party landscape architect for conformance with the conceptual
plan. Landscaping will be required to be installed according to
the final approved Landscape Documentation Package, and a
Certificate of Completion signed by the professional of record
will be required prior to the final inspection of the residence.
The City’s third-party landscape architect will perform
inspections during the construction phase of the project. A
separate condition has been added to require that native or
drought-tolerant and non-invasive plant materials and water-
conserving irrigation systems are required to be incorporated
into the landscaping to the extent feasible.

Roads, Pedestrian Walkways, Parking and Storage Areas: Any
development involving more than one building or structure shall
provide common access roads and pedestrian walkways.
Parking and outside storage areas, where permitted, shall be
screened from view, to the extent feasible, by existing
topography, by the placement of buildings and structures, or by
landscaping and plantings.

The proposed project, as designed, provides a driveway toward
the center of the consolidated site from the west side of N.
Granados Avenue. The driveway will provide access to all four
units at the center of the lot. Garages for Units 1 and 4 would
have garage doors facing south and Units 2 and 3 would have
garage doors facing north. SBMC Section 17.52.040(A)
requires two off-street parking spaces per dwelling unit that are
9 feet by 19 feet and clear of obstruction. SBMC Section
17.08.030 indicates that required parking up to 200 square feet
per parking space provided in a garage is exempt from the
FAR calculation. Two spaces are required per unit, therefore,
up to 400 square feet of garage area per unit can be exempted
from the FAR calculation for the project. In addition, one guest
parking space is required per four dwelling units for a multi-
family development. The Applicant has provided one guest
parking space between the living area of the first floor of Units
3 and 4. The parking space is 9 X 19 feet clear with 36 inches



Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 7 of 21

of walking space on either side that provides access to the
common open space area within the rear yard of the lot.

. Grading: To the extent feasible, natural topography and scenic
features of the site shall be retained and incorporated into the
proposed development. Any grading or earth-moving
operations in connection with the proposed development shall
be planned and executed so as to blend with the existing
terrain both on and adjacent to the site. Existing exposed or
disturbed slopes shall be landscaped with native or naturalized
non-native vegetation and existing erosion problems shall be
corrected.

The existing property slopes downward across the site from
Granados Avenue as you travel west. Grading is proposed in
the following quantities; 880 yd? of cut, 372 yd?® of fill and 508
yd? of export as well as 1,252 yd?® of site grading, 96 yd? of cut
for footings and 565 yd?® of removal and recompaction.

Grading is proposed in order to lower the site elevation. The
finished pad height for Units 1 and 2 would be approximately
13 feet lower than the street elevation. The pad heights of
Units 3 and 4 would be approximately 15 feet lower than the
street elevation at the proposed garages and 18 feet lower at
the finished pad of the living area. Grading is also proposed to
provide vehicular access to each of the units from a central
driveway, stormwater detention and flat usable yard area.
Retaining walls are proposed along the north, south and west
property lines to support the higher grades on adjacent
properties.

Lighting: Light fixtures for walkways, parking areas, driveways,
and other facilities shall be provided in sufficient number and at
proper locations to assure safe and convenient nighttime use.
All light fixtures shall be appropriately shielded so that no light
or glare is transmitted or reflected in such concentrated
guantities or intensities as to be detrimental to the surrounding
areas per SBMC 17.60.060 (Exterior Lighting Regulations).

Conditional approval of this project includes the requirement
that all new exterior lighting fixtures be in conformance with the
City-Wide Lighting Regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. All
light fixtures will be shielded so that no light or glare is
transmitted or reflected in such concentrated quantities or
intensities as to be detrimental to the surrounding area.



Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 8 of 21

g. Usable Open Space: Recreational facilities proposed within
required usable open space shall be located and designed to
maintain essential open space values.

Per SBMC Section 17.20.040(J), a minimum of 250 square feet
of common usable open space is required for each unit in a
multiple-unit development as follows. The usable open space
shall consist of land not occupied by buildings, structures,
streets, driveways or parking areas or any land proposed to be
dedicated to the City as open space. All usable open space is
required to have a minimum area of 250 square feet and shall
have no dimension less than 15 feet or a slope greater than 10
percent. All usable open space not occupied by recreational
facilities shall be landscaped. Drought-tolerant landscaping
materials and water conserving irrigation systems shall be
utilized to the maximum extent feasible. A four unit project in
the MHR Zone requires 1,000 square feet of usable open
space. The proposed development, as designed, would provide
a total of 1,005 square feet of common open space that meets
the requirements noted above along the rear or western
elevation of Units 3 and 4.

[ll.  All required permits and approvals including variances, conditional use
permits, comprehensive sign plans, and coastal development permits
have been obtained prior to or concurrently with the development
review permit.

All required permits, including a Structure Development Permit and the
Minor Subdivision, are being processed concurrently with the
Development Review Permit.

IV. If the development project also requires a permit or approval to be
issued by a state or federal agency, the city council may conditionally
approve the development review permit upon the applicant obtaining
the required permit or approval from the other agency.

All required permits, including the Minor Subdivision and Structure
Development Permit, are being processed concurrently with the
Development Review Permit. The Applicant is required to obtain
approval from the California Coastal Commission prior to issuance of
Building Permits.

B. In accordance with Section 17.63.040 (Structure Development Permit) of
the Solana Beach Municipal Code, the City Council finds the following:

The proposed structures exceed 16 feet in height above the existing
grade. Therefore, the project must comply with the requirements of
SBMC Chapter 17.63 View Assessment and the Applicant was



C.

Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 9 of 21

required to complete the SDP process. The initial Story Pole Height
Certification was issued by a licensed land surveyor on December 17,
2018 and the final amended Height Certification was issued on
January 31, 2019. The story pole height certifications provided show
the highest point above Mean Sea Level (MSL) for each unit as well as
the tallest point of each unit as measured above the pre-existing grade
which is as follows:

Unit #: Tallest Point: Max. Height

Unit 1 130.68 MSL 24.99 ft.
Unit 2 128.53 MSL 24.70 ft.
Unit 3 124.25 MSL 24.86 ft.
Unit 4 124.25 MSL 24.86 ft.

Notices were mailed to property owners and occupants within 300 feet
of the project site establishing a deadline to file for View Assessment
by March 11, 2019. One application for View Assessment was
received. The Applicant redesigned Unit 3 to lower the overall height
from 24.86 to 22.95 feet and provide a view corridor for the neighbor
across the southwest corner of Unit 3. After reviewing the revised
plan, the View Claimant withdrew their application for View
Assessment. Therefore, if the Council is able to make the required
findings to approve the DRP, the SDP would be approved
administratively.

The Applicant then redesigned the project to address concerns raised
at the Public Hearing on November 20, 2019. This resulted in the
removal of architectural features that lowered the maximum height and
tallest point of Unit 3 and the tallest point of Unit 4.

As a condition of approval, a height certificate prepared by a licensed
land surveyor will be required prior to the framing inspection certifying
that the maximum height of each of the units will not exceed the
highest point above MSL or the tallest point as measured from the
lower of pre-existing or proposed grade as follows:

Unit #: Tallest Point: Max. Height

Unit 1 130.68 MSL 24.99 ft.
Unit 2 128.53 MSL 24.70 ft.
Unit 3 120.93 MSL 23.05 ft.
Unit 4 122.74 MSL 24.86 ft.

In accordance with Section 16.24.140 (Subdivisions) of the City of Solana
Beach Municipal Code (SBMC), the City Council finds the following:



Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 10 of 21

The proposed map is consistent with applicable general and specific
plans and applicable provisions of SBMC Title 17.

The tentative Parcel Map is consistent with the General Plan and
applicable provisions of SBMC Title 17. The development of a common
interest development containing four individual detached single-family
dwelling units is consistent with the purpose and intent of the Medium-
High Residential land use designation set forth in the General Plan.
The project is also consistent with the development standards set forth
in Title 17 (Zoning) for building setbacks, density, building height, floor
area ratio, and parking. The subject property is not located within the
boundaries of any specific plan or overlay zone.

That the design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is
consistent with applicable provisions of SBMC Title 17.

The design of the subdivision, as conditioned, is consistent with all
applicable provisions of Title 17 including allowable uses, design, and
location of proposed structures, density (with approval of a DRP),
minimum floor area, minimum yard dimensions (setbacks), maximum
floor area ratio, maximum building height parking, and all other
applicable specific requirements.

The site is physically suitable for the type of development.

The site is physically suitable to be developed with a four-unit single-
family detached common interest development. The project site is
located outside the boundaries of the overlay zones and specific plan
areas. Therefore, those specific regulations do not apply to this project.

That the site is physically suitable for the proposed density of
development.

[Finding to be inserted after Council discussion]

The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements are not
likely to cause substantial environmental damage and avoidably injure
fish or wildlife or their habitat; unless an environmental impact report
was prepared in respect to the project and a finding was made
pursuant to Section 21081(c) of the Public Resources Code that
specific economic, social or other considerations make infeasible the
mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the
environmental impact report.

The design of the subdivision and proposed improvements are not likely
to cause substantial environmental damage and/or avoidably injure fish
or wildlife or their habitat. No environmentally sensitive habitat area or
biological resources have been identified on the property. No fish or



VI.

VII.

VIII.

Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 11 of 21

wildlife has been identified as native or transitive to this site. The project
site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened
species. This project was found exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and did not warrant the preparation
of an environmental impact report.

The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements is not likely
to cause serious public health problems.

The design of the subdivision and the type of improvements are not
likely to cause serious public health problems given that all public
utilities are available to serve the development, including sewer and
water. Approval of this project will not result in any significant effects
relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality. The project will not
interfere with existing public utilities to adjacent properties.

The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not
conflict with easements of record or easements established by court
judgment acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of
property within the proposed subdivision.

The design of the subdivision and the type of improvements will not
conflict with easements of record. In addition, there are no easements
established by court judgment, acquired by the public at large, for
access or use of the property within the proposed subdivision. All
existing easements have been demarcated on the tentative map and
will be maintained with the design of the subdivision and the type of
improvements. Alternate or additional easements will not be required.

In the case of the conversion of residential real property to a common
interest development project, that any of the notices to tenants
required by law have been sent or will be given as required by the
Subdivision Map Act.

The tenant onsite has been notified of the proposed project and public
notices for this project have been mailed to the tenant onsite pursuant
to SBMC Section 17.72.030 (Public Hearing and Notice
Requirements).

Subject to the exceptions contained in Section 66474.4 of the
Government Code, that the property is not subject to a contract
entered into pursuant to the Land Conservation Act of 1965
(Williamson Act) and the parcels resulting from the subdivision would
be too small to sustain agricultural use.

The property is not subject to a contract pursuant to the Williamson Act.
The parcel has a zoning designation within the MHR Zone and Staff is
not aware of any historical uses of the property as agricultural land.



Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 12 of 21

5. CONDITIONS

Prior to use or development of the property in reliance on this permit, the
Applicant shall provide for and adhere to the following conditions:

A. Community Development Department Conditions:

VI.

VII.

The Applicant shall pay required Public Facilities, Fire Mitigation,
Park Development and Public Use Facilities Impact Fees, as
established by SBMC Chapter 17.72.020, Chapter 15.60, Chapter
15.65, Chapter 15.66, and Resolutions 1987-36 and 2018-147.

The Applicant shall pay the required Regional Transportation
Congestion Program (RTCIP) Fee, per dwelling unit, prior to building
permit issuance.

Building Permit plans must be in substantial conformance with the
plans presented to the City Council on June 10, 2020 and located in
the project file dated May 18, 2020.

Prior to requesting a framing inspection, the Applicant will be required
to submit a height certification for each building, signed by a licensed
land surveyor, certifying that the building envelopes for each unit
(which are represented by the story poles) are in conformance with
the plans as approved by the City Council on June 10, 2020 and the
certified story pole plot plan. In addition, the height certification will
verify that each unit does not exceed 25 feet in height as measured
from the lower of existing or proposed grade.

All onsite fences, walls, retaining walls, hedges, other dense
landscaping, and/or any combination thereof, shall comply with
applicable regulations of SBMC Section 17.20.040(0) and 17.60.070
(Fences, Walls, and Retaining Walls). The Applicant shall illustrate
that any proposed walls, retaining walls, fences or any combination
thereof will comply with the maximum height regulations prior to the
issuance of a building permit.

The Applicant shall obtain required California Coastal Commission
(CCC) approval of a Coastal Development Permit, Waiver or
Exemption as determined necessary by the CCC, prior to the
issuance of a grading or building permit.

The Applicant will be required to provide a full Landscape
Documentation Package in compliance with SBMC Chapter 17.56
prior to building permit issuance, which will be reviewed and
inspected by the City’s third-party landscape professional.



VIII.

XI.

XIl.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVII.

XVIII.

XIX.

Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 13 of 21

Native or drought tolerant and non-invasive plant materials and water
conserving irrigation systems shall be incorporated into proposed
landscaping to the extent feasible.

Any new exterior lighting fixtures shall be in conformance with the
City-Wide Lighting Regulations of SBMC Section 17.60.060.

All light fixtures shall be appropriately shielded so that no light or
glare is transmitted or reflected in such concentrated quantities or
intensities that render them detrimental to the surrounding area.

The Developer/Contractor shall conduct all grading operations in
such a manner as to confine dust generated from the operation to the
site of the grading. Per City of Solana Beach Municipal Code
15.40.090(1), special conditions intended to control dust palliative
may be imposed as additional requirements on the grading permit.
Such conditions may be imposed in the field if necessary.

The Applicant shall connect to temporary electrical service as soon
as feasible to the satisfaction of the City.

Construction shall only occur between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and
7:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and between the hours of 8:00
a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on Saturday. Construction activities shall not
occur on Sunday or holidays.

Construction vehicles shall be parked on the subject property at all
times when feasible. If construction activity prohibits parking on the
subject property, the Applicant shall ensure construction vehicles are
parked in such a way to allow sufficient vehicular access on the
street and minimize impact to the surrounding neighbors.

The City Council shall review and approve the proposed CC&R’s for
the development prior to the approval of the Final Map.

The CC&R’s shall clearly restrict the garage space use from
impeding the ability to park two automobiles in the garage at all
times.

The installation or use of any balcony, patio, or roof deck is prohibited
for the occupancy or use on the second floor roof of any unit.

The installation or use of the first floor roof as a balcony, patio, or roof
deck is prohibited on the south side of Unit 3.

Prior to the final inspection, the Applicant is required to install a
photovoltaic solar panel system that would adequately serve a family



XX.

Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 14 of 21

of three is required to be installed on each unit.

The Applicant shall coordinate with the neighbors to provide a
construction fence at a height that would adequately screen and
shield the neighbors to the west from dust and debris.

B. Fire Department Conditions:

ACCESS ROAD MINIMUM DIMENSIONS: Fire apparatus access
roads shall have an unobstructed improved width of not less than 20
feet; curb line to curb line, and an unobstructed vertical clearance of
not less than 13 feet 6 inches. Exceptions: Single-Family residential
driveways; serving no more than two single-family dwellings, shall
have minimum of 16 feet, curb line to curb line, of unobstructed
improved width. Access roads shall be designed and maintained to
support the imposed loads of not less than 75,000 pounds and shall
be provided with an approved paved surface to provide all-weather
driving capabilities.

A minimum 20-foot-wide unobstructed fire access road shall extend
to within 150 feet of all portions of the exterior walls of the first story
of the buildings as measured by an approved route around the
exterior of the building without obstructions.

GRADE: The gradient for a fire apparatus access roadway shall not
exceed 20.0%. Grades exceeding 15.0% (incline or decline) shall
not be permitted without mitigation. Minimal mitigation shall be a
surface of Portland cement concrete, with a deep broom finish
perpendicular to the entire direction of travel. Additional mitigation
measures may be required where deemed appropriate. The angle of
departure and angle of approach of a fire access roadway shall not
exceed seven degrees (12 percent).

GATES: All gates or other structures or devices, which could
obstruct fire access roadways or otherwise hinder emergency
operations, are prohibited unless they meet standards approved by
the Fire Department. An approved emergency key-operated switch
and/or an approved emergency traffic control-activating strobe light
sensor shall be installed per Solana Be Fire Department standards.

RESPONSE MAPS: Any new development, which necessitates
updating of emergency response maps by virtue of new structures,
hydrants, roadways or similar features, shall be required to provide
map updates in one of the following formats (AutoCad DWG, DXF,
ESRI shapefile, ESRI personal geodatabase, or XML format) and
shall be charged a reasonable fee for updating all response maps.



VI.

VII.

VIII.

XI.

XIl.

XIIl.

Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 15 of 21

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS: Prior to delivery of combustible
building construction materials to the project site all of the following
conditions shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Fire
Department:

All wet and dry utilities shall be installed and approved by the
appropriate inspecting department or agency;

As a minimum the first lift of asphalt paving shall be in place to
provide a permanent all weather surface for emergency vehicles; and

Water supply for fire protection (fire hydrants and standpipes) shall
be installed, in service and accepted by the Fire Department and
applicable water district.

POSTING OR STRIPING ROADWAYS “NO PARKING FIRE LANE”:
Fire Department access roadways, when required, shall be properly
identified as per Solana Beach Fire Department standards. The
means by which fire lanes are designated shall be maintained in a
clean and legible condition at all times and be replaced or repaired
when necessary to provide adequate visibility.

OBSTRUCTION OF ROADWAYS DURING CONSTRUCTION: All
roadways shall be a minimum of 24 feet in width during construction
and maintained free and clear, including the parking of vehicles, in
accordance with the California Fire Code and the Solana Beach Fire
Department.

FIRE HYDRANTS AND FIRE FLOWS: The applicant shall provide
fire hydrants of a type, number, and location satisfactory to the
Solana Beach Fire Department. A letter from the water agency
serving the area shall be provided that states the required fire flow is
available. Fire hydrants shall be of a bronze type. Multi-family
residential or industrial fire hydrants shall have two (2) 4” inch and
two (2) 2 2" inch NST outlets. Residential fire hydrants shall have
one (1) 4” inch NST outlet, and one (1) 2 %" inch NST outlets.

ADDRESS NUMBERS: STREET NUMBERS: Approved numbers
and/or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings
and at appropriate additional locations as to be plainly visible and
legible from the street or roadway fronting the property from either
direction of approach. Said numbers shall contrast with their
background, and shall meet the following minimum standards as to
size: 4” high with a %" inch stroke width for residential buildings, 8”
high with a %" stroke for commercial and multi-family residential
buildings, 12” high with a 1” stroke for industrial buildings. Additional
numbers shall be required where deemed necessary by the Fire



XIV.

XV.

Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 16 of 21

Marshal, such as rear access doors, building corners, and entrances
to commercial centers.

ADDRESS NUMBERS FOR STRUCTURES LOCATED OFF
ROADWAY: Where structures are located off a roadway on long
easements/driveways, a monument marker shall be placed at the
entrance where the easement/driveway intersects the main roadway.
Permanent address numbers with height conforming to Fire
Department standards shall be affixed to this marker.

AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM-ONE AND TWO FAMILY
DWELLINGS: Structures shall be protected by an automatic fire
sprinkler system designed and installed to the satisfaction of the Fire
Department. Plans for the automatic fire sprinkler system shall be
approved by the Fire Department prior to installation.

C. Engineering Department Conditions:

The Applicant shall prepare, process and record a consolidation
Parcel Map prior to issuance of any building permit under this
Development Review Permit.

Obtain an Encroachment Permit in accordance with Chapter 11.20 of
the Solana Beach Municipal Code, prior to the demolition and
construction of any improvements within the public right-of-way,
including the following as shown on the Preliminary Grading Plan:

a. Demolition and Removal of existing surface improvements in
Public Right-of-Way including, but not limited to, the stairs, 4’
block wall, 3-5 retaining wall, berm, trees, 4° wood fence, 6’
wood fence.

b. Construction of 9” X 9” X 12” low profile mountable concrete
curb along N. Granados Ave with transitions to the existing
improvements on both sides.

C. Construction of a 12° wide, Stabilized, Compacted
Decomposed Granite graded at 2% towards the curb.

d. Construction of driveway at 2% maximum cross slope
connecting to the mountable concrete curb.

e. Relocation of existing fire hydrant, utility boxes, etc. on North
Granados Avenue.

f. Construction of the pervious pavers and riprap on N. Granados
Ave.

All proposed improvements within the public right-of-way shall
comply with city standards including, but not limited to, the Off-Street



VI.

VII.

VIII.

Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 17 of 21

Parking Design Manual and shall be constructed under a valid
encroachment permit to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

The Applicant shall record the Encroachment Maintenance Removal
Agreement (EMRA) with the County of San Diego prior to the release
of the Grading Bond and Security Deposit. The EMRA shall be
recorded against this property for all improvements in the Public
Right-Of-Way including, but not limited to:

a. Pervious pavers driveway approach.
b Pervious pavers spillway.

C. Bubbler with riprap.
d

12’ wide D.G. pathway graded at 2% towards the curb along
the frontage of the property.

e. 9” X 9” X 12” mountable concrete curb.
Landscaping.
g. Irrigation

The Applicant shall pay a TIF (Traffic Impact Fee) associated with the
construction of the new single-family residences prior to Building
Permit Issuance that is required. The current fee rate for a
Residential-Condo & Multi-Family is $11,206 per unit. The proposed
project will consist of four single family residences thus the cost the
Applicant is responsible for is $44,824 prior to Building Permit
Issuance ($11,206 multiplied by 4).

The Applicant shall pay a Regional Transportation Congestion
Program RTCIP Fee prior to Building Permit Issuance is required of
this project. The current rate for a multi-family dwelling unit is $2,899.
The proposed project will consist of four single family residences thus
the cost the Applicant is responsible for is $11,596 prior to Building
Permit Issuance ($2,899 multiplied by 4).

The Applicant shall record a Hold Harmless Agreement prior to Final
Inspection of the Building Permit. The document will hold the City of
Solana Beach harmless in case of storm water backup due to a
blockage in the public storm drain main. A backflow prevention
device shall be installed on private property.

Underground all new utility services including, but not limited to,
electrical and telephone.

All construction demolition materials shall be recycled according to
the City’s Construction and Demolition recycling program and an
approved Waste Management Plan shall be submitted.



XI.

Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 18 of 21

Construction fencing shall be located on the subject property unless
the Applicant has obtained an Encroachment Permit in accordance
with chapter 11.20 of the Solana Beach Municipal Code which allows
otherwise.

Obtain a Grading Permit in accordance with Chapter 15.40 of the
Solana Beach Municipal Code. Conditions prior to the issuance of a
grading permit shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

a. The Applicant shall obtain a grading plan prepared by a
Registered Civil Engineer and approved by the City Engineer.
On-site grading design and construction shall be in accordance
with Chapter 15.40 of the Solana Beach Municipal Code.

b. The Applicant shall obtain a Soils Report prepared by a
Registered Soils Engineer and approved by the City Engineer.
All necessary measures shall be taken and implemented to
assure slope stability, erosion control and soil integrity. The
grading plan shall incorporate all recommendations contained
in the soils report.

C. The Applicant shall provide a Drainage Report prepared by a
Registered Civil Engineer. This report shall address the design
for detention basin and corresponding outflow system to
ensure the rate of runoff for the proposed development is at or
below that of pre-existing condition. All recommendations of
this report shall be incorporated into the Preliminary Grading
Plan. A detention basin easement(s) shall be recorded for
maintenance of the detention basins by the property owner(s)
in perpetuity, prior to Final Inspection of the Building Permit.

d. The Applicant shall show all retaining walls and drainage
structures. Retaining walls shown on the grading plan shall
conform to the San Diego Regional Standards or be designed
by a licensed civil engineer. Engineering calculations for all
designed walls with a surcharge and nonstandard walls shall
be submitted at grading plan check. Retaining walls may not
exceed the allowable height within the property line setback as
determined by the City of Solana Beach Municipal Code.
Contact the Community Development department for further
information.

e. The Applicant is responsible to protect the adjacent properties
during construction. If any grading, construction activity, access
or potential construction-related impacts are anticipated
beyond the property lines, as determined by the City Engineer,
the Applicant shall obtain a letter of permission from the
adjoining property owners. All required letters of permission
shall be submitted to the City Engineer prior to the issuance of
the grading permit.



Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 19 of 21

Cut and fill slopes shall be set back from site boundaries and
buildings shall be set back from cut or fill slopes in accordance
with  SBMC 15.40.140 and to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer.

The Applicant shall pay a grading plan check fee in accordance
with the current Engineering Fee Schedule at initial grading
plan submittal. Inspection fees shall be paid prior to issuance
of the grading permit.

The Applicant shall obtain and submit grading security in a
form prescribed by the City Engineer.

The Applicant shall obtain haul permit for import / export of soil.
The Applicant shall transport all excavated material to a legal
disposal site.

The Applicant shall submit certification from the Engineer of
Record and the Soils Engineer that all public or private
drainage facilities and finished grades are functioning and are
installed in accordance with the approved plans. This shall be
accomplished by the Engineer of Record incorporating as-built
conditions on the Mylar grading plans and obtaining signatures
of the Engineer of Record and the Soils Engineer certifying the
as-built conditions.

An Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control Plan shall be
prepared by the Applicant. Best management practices shall be
developed and implemented to manage storm water and non-
storm water discharges from the site at all times during
excavation and grading activities. Erosion prevention shall be
emphasized as the most important measure for keeping
sediment on site during excavation and grading activities.
Sediment controls shall be used as a supplement to erosion
prevention for keeping sediment on site.

The Applicant shall show all proposed on-site private drainage
facilities intended to discharge water run-off. Elements of this
design shall include a hydrologic and hydraulic analysis
verifying the adequacy of the facilities and identify any
easements or structures required to properly convey the
drainage. The construction of drainage structures shall comply
with the standards set forth by the San Diego Regional
Standard Drawings.

Post Construction Best Management Practices meeting City
and RWQCB Order No. R9-2013-001 requirements shall be
implemented in the drainage design.

Prior to obtaining a building permit, submit a building pad
certification statement from a soils engineer and an engineer or



Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 20 of 21

land surveyor licensed in Land Surveying per SBMC
15.40.230E.

0. No increased cross lot drainage shall be allowed.

p. The Applicant shall prepare a City of Solana Beach Storm
Water Checklist for Determination of Project Category to
address potential water quality impacts to ensure that
pollutants and runoff from this development are reduced to the
maximum extent practicable.

Prior to approval of the Parcel Map, the Applicant shall:

XIl.
XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVII.

XVIII.

Prepare a Parcel Map in accordance with Chapter 16.32 of SBMC.

Provide a Subdivision Map Guarantee within ten days before
recording the Parcel Map.

The Applicant shall comply with Section 66436 of the Government
Code by furnishing to the City Engineer a certification from each
public utility and each public entity owning easements within the
proposed subdivision stating that: (a) they have received from the
developer a copy of the proposed Parcel Map; (b) they object or do
not object to the filing of the Parcel Map without their signature; (c) in
the case of a street dedication affected by their existing easement,
they will sign a “subordination certificate” or “joint use certificate” on
the map when required by the governing body.

Pay Parcel Map plan check fee in accordance with the current
Engineering Fee Schedule.

The Applicant shall connect all dwellings to the sewer system. The
Applicant shall pay in full the one-time sewer capacity fee of
$4,500.00 per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) prior to Building Permit
Issuance. The EDU assignment is determined by SBMC 14.08.060.
The proposed project would increase the property’s EDU assignment
by 3.6 EDU. The cost the Applicant is responsible for is $9,900.00
prior to Building Permit Issuance (3.6 EDU multiplied by $4,500.00).

Pay in full the prorated portion of the current annual sewer charge for
the remainder of the fiscal year.

Sewer permit required for private sewer lateral. The Applicant shall
coordinate with the Public Works inspector to allow the inspector to
inspect the entire length of the private sewer lines within the public
right of way before backfilling.

6. ENFORCEMENT: Pursuant to SBMC 17.72.120(B) failure to satisfy any and all
of the above-mentioned conditions of approval is subject to the imposition of
penalties as set forth in SBMC Chapters 1.16 and 1.18 in addition to any
applicable revocation proceedings.

7. EXPIRATION: The Development Review Permit, Structure Development Permit,



Resolution 20-078
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB Granados Avenue Partners, LLC
Page 21 of 21

and Minor Subdivision Tentative Parcel Map for the project will expire on 24
months from the date of approval unless the Applicant has recorded a final map,
obtained building permits, and has commenced construction prior to that date,
and diligently pursued construction to completion. An extension of the application
may be granted by the City Council.

8. INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT: The Applicant shall defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless the City, its agents, officers, and employees from any and all
claims, actions, proceedings, damages, judgments, or costs, including attorney’s
fees, against the City or its agents, officers, or employees, relating to the
issuance of this permit including, but not limited to, any action to attack, set
aside, void, challenge, or annul this development approval and any
environmental document or decision. The City will promptly notify the Applicant
of any claim, action, or proceeding. The City may elect to conduct its own
defense, participate in its own defense, or obtain independent legal counsel in
defense of any claim related to this indemnification. In the event of such election,
Applicant shall pay all of the costs related thereto, including without limitation
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. In the event of a disagreement between
the City and the Applicant regarding litigation issues, the City shall have the
authority to control the litigation and make litigation related decisions, including,
but not limited to, settlement or other disposition of the matter. However, the
Applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement unless such
settlement is approved by Applicant.

9. NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020, you are
hereby notified that the 90-day period to protest the imposition of the fees,
dedications, reservations or other exactions described in this resolution
commences on the effective date of this resolution. To protest the imposition of
any fee, dedications, reservations or other exactions described in this resolution
you must comply with the provisions of Government Code Section 66020.
Generally the resolution is effective upon expiration of the tenth day following the
date of adoption of this resolution, unless the resolution is appealed or called for
review as provided in the Solana Beach Zoning Ordinance.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana
Beach, California, held on the 10" day of June, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers —
NOES: Councilmembers —
ABSENT: Councilmembers —
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers —

JEWEL EDSON, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk



ALL

PROJECT DIRECTORY

ARCHITECT / APPLICANT:
EDINGER ARCHITECTS - (858) 104-4004
444 5. CEDROS AVE. #2325, SOLANA BEACH, CA 42075

PROPERTY OWNER:

GRANADOS AVENUE PARTNERS LLC - (619) 993-2160
SI135 AVENIDA ENCINAS #B, CARLSBAD, CA 92008

CIVIL ENGINEER:

PASCO LARET SUITER AND ASSOCIATES - (5658) 259-6212
535 N. HAY. 101, SUITE A, SOLANA BEACH, CA 42075

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT:
JPBLA, INC. - (160) 419-0645
4403 MANCHESTER AVE. SUITE 201 ENCINITAS, CA 92024

PROJECT DATA

DRAWINGS AND WRITTEN MATERIALS APPEARING HEREIN CONSTITUTE ORIGINAL AND UNPUBLISHED WORK AND ARE THE PROPERTY OF EDINGER ARCHITECTS, DEVELOPED FOR USE ON THIS PROJECT AND MAY NOT BE DUPLICATED, USED OR DISCLOSED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF EDINGER ARCHITECTS.

\ AB ancher bolt COMB  combination EXT exterior éL glass LKW lightweight PFN prefinished SCH schedvle Laboratories
ADD addendum CONC concrete F Fluorescent GFPDW  gypsum dry wall LWGC lightweight concrete PH phone SD smoke detector UMC Uniform Mechanical Code
AD. adjacent CONST  construction FAU forced air unit GPF gallons per Flush MAS masonry PK parking SH shelf or shelving UON unless otherwise noted
AFCI arc fault cireult CONT continuous or continue FB face brick GPM gallons per minute MAX maximum PL plate or property line SH single hung urPC Uniform Plumbing Code
interrupter CONTR  contract(or) FBO furnished by others HB hose bbb MC medicine cabinet PNL panel SHT sheet \"4 volt(age)
AFF above finish floor CSMT casement FFE finished floor elevation HC hollow core MED medium PNT paint{ed) SIM similar VERT vertical
AL aluminum CcT ceramic tile FFEL finished floor line HDW hardware MET metal PR air SKL skylight VIN vinyl
ARCH  architect(ural) CTR counter FG fvel gas HDR header MFR manufacture(r) PSF gounds per square foot SL slider or sliding VNR ? veneer
BD board cYpD cuble yard FéeL floerglass HOR horizontal MIN minimum Psl pounds per square Inch SPL special H West
BLD&  building pBL double FIN tinish{ed) HT height MIR mirror{ed) PT point or post-tension(ed) SPEC specification(s) W Width or Wide
BLK block DEC decorative FLe Flashing IBC Internat'l Bldg. Code MISC miscellaneovs PT pressure-treated SQ square We Water closet
BLK& blocking DF dovuglas fir FLR floor(ing) IcBO Internat'l Councll of MRB marble PHD plywood ST steel WD wood
BRGS bearing DH double hung FLUOR  fluorescent Bldg. Officlals MTL material(s) QT quarry tile STD standard WH water heater
BRK brick DIA diameter FND foundation D inside dlameter MULL mullion R riser STR structural Wi wrought fron
BS both sides DIAG diagonal Foc Face of concrete IN inch(es) N north R(AD)  radius SUS svspended HIN Window
CAB cabinet DIM dimension FOF foce of Finish INCL Include(d), (ing) NEC National Electric Code RAG return air grille T tread WP waterproof(ing)
CBC Californla Bullding Code DR door FOM face of masonry INT Interior NIC not In contract RC resllient channel T¢G tongue and groove W5 water softener
CEC California Electrical DTL detail FOS face of studs IRC Internat'l Residential NOM nominal RD roof drain B towel bar WSCT  wainscot
Cgfe cortlosh EDN dlsh:qasher‘ FPL fireplace Code OA overadll REF reference TC trash compactor WAF welded wire fabric
c counterflashing eas FR frame(d)(ing) or French J Jolst oc on center(s) REF(RIG) refrigerator TEMP  tempered
oM cublc feet per minute EF each face FT foot or feet KIT kitchen op outside diameter REM ?‘emove THK thick(ness)
grPTG cubltc lI’ao:: . Ell:g\c/ e:ecb;lc(al) FTS footing KPL klckplate orPG opening RFG roofing TR towel ring
cast-In-place concreie elevation FUT future LAY lavator orP opposite RH right hand TR transom
CIR circle EP electrical panel FX fixed L length Y oFPT opl:lon(%FI)) =Y r-ogom TSL top of slab
cLe celling EQ equal &C general contract(or) LBL label PeT pressure & temperature RO rough opening v television
CLR clearance EST estimate GFI/6FCI ground fault clrcult LH left hand PAR parallel ROW right of way TP typlcal
oMy concrete masonry unit Exe existing Interrupter LT light PCceC precast concrete 5 south uBc Uniform Bullding Code
cOoL column ExXP exposed Sl galvanized Iron LVR louver PFB prefabricate(d) s solld-core uL Underwriter's
YS DURING CONSTRUCTION: All road hall b
o oL et b, el oot ior i Tl b o e A.  THE NUMBER OF PARKING E. THE NUMBER OF LOADING 0 ARCHITECTURE AO-5 SITE SECTIONS A2-4.2 BUILDING CROSS SECTIONS Ad-4.2 BUILDING CROSS SECTIONS
including the parking of vehicles, in accordance with the California Fire Code and the A EK’I:‘SEUGSEREGUIRED FOR EACH SPACES PROVIDED = NONE AOC-I TITLE SHEET AND SITE PLAN AO-6 3D RENDERINGS A2-5 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS A4-5 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
Fire Department. = 2PERUNIT +1 REQUIRED AO-1.2 SITE DEMO PLAN
GUEST SPACE (4 TOTAL) AOC-13 FIRE ACCESS SITE PLAN UNIT | UNIT 3 O LANDSCAPE (BY OTHERS)
ADDRESS NUMBERS: STREET NUMBERS: Approved numbers and/or addresses F.  TOTAL PROJECT SITE AREA = Al- SLAB INTERFACE PLAN AS-| SLAB INTERFACE PLAN LC-l TITLE PLAN
shall be placed on all new and existing buildings and at appropriate additional B. THE TOTAL NUMBER OF 14381 SF. o CIVIL (BY OTHERS) Al-2.1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN AS-2. FIRST FLOOR PLAN Lc-2 LANDSCAPE CONCEPT PLAN
locations as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or roadway fronting the PARKING SPACES PROVIDED I OF 2 TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP Al-2.2 SECOND FLOOR PLAN AS-22 SECOND FLOOR PLAN Lc-3 LANDSCAPE CONCEPT PLANTING LIST
property from either direction of approach. Said numbers shall contrast with their = 4 TOTAL (B-GARAGE / | 2 0F 2 PRELIMINARY GRADING PLAN Al-3 REFLECTED CEILING / ROOF PLAN A3-3 REFLECTED CEILING / ROOF PLAN
background, and shall meet the following minimum standards as to size: 4" high with a G LANDSCAPE AREA FOR Al-d] BUILDING CROSS SECTIONS A3-4 BUILDING CROSS SECTIONS
4" inch stroke width for residential buildings, 8" high with a %" stroke for commercial GUEST SPACES) : = s e
and multi-family residential buildings, 12° high with a 1" stroke for industrial buildings. ENTIRE PROJECT SITE = 4226 o ARCHITECTURE Al-4.2 BUILDING CROSS SECTIONS A3-4.2 BUILDING CROSS SECTIONS
Additional numbers shall be required where deemed necessary by the Fire Marshal, C. THE NUMBER OF REGULAR SFE / 3303 oF IRRIGATED AO-2.| FIRST FLOOR SITE PLAN Al-5 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS A3-5 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
such as rear access doors, building corners, and entrances to commercial centers. CAR SPACES PROVIDED = ﬁ AO-2.2 SECOND FLOOR SITE PLAN UNIT 2 UNIT 4
TOTAL (8-GARAGE / |-GUEST AO-3.| F.AR. CALCULATION SHEET
AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM: ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLINGS: AO-32 F.AR, CALCULATION SHEET A2-| SLAB INTERFACE PLAN Ad-| SLAB INTERFACE PLAN
Structures shall be protected by an automatic fire sprinkler system designed and SPACES) AO-4 PROPOSED STORY POLE PLAN A2-21 FIRST FLOOR PLAN A4-2 FIRST FLOOR PLAN
installed to the satisfaction of the Fire Department. Plans for the automatic fire D. THE NUMBER OF HANDICAPPED AO-42 PARTIAL STORY POLE PLAN /4" A2-22 SECOND FLOOR PLAN A4-22 SECOND FLOOR PLAN
sprinkler system shall be approved by the Fire Department prior to installation. . AO-43 PARTIAL STORY POLE PLAN /4" A2-3 REFLECTED CEILING / ROOF PLAN A4-3 REFLECTED CEILING / ROOF PLAN
SPACES PROVIDED = NONE ' A2-4) BUILDING CROSS SECTIONS Ad-4] BUILDING CROS5 SECTIONS
4. SMOKE DETECTORS/CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS/FIRE SPRINKLER
SYSTEMS: Smoke detectors/carbon monoxide alarms/fire sprinklers shall be
inspected by the Solana Beach Fire Department. I /
i LINE OF LOIW RETAINING WALL AND w
. : ; FENCE SEE FENCE / WALL DETAILS
5. CLASS “A” ROOF: All structures shall be provided with a Class "A" Roof covering to ALL WALLS AND FENCING ON , | A .
the satisfaction of the Selana Beach Fire Department. \ oo P L NEIGHBORING PROPERTY T0 BT ] Sk 240 o P - N
N '{ EE UPPER 24" OF FENCE 104.0 BiA ! .
6.  BASEMENT: " 50% OFEN (SBMC 046 E6 1 IE%E%S; . 145" TF
» All basements shall be designed and equipped with emergency exit systems b =g 2l = I = i o' TF (N) MASONRY RETAINING HALL W/
ase lesigned and equipp ) ) : N 1058 TF (058" TF O = |M [ = 145 TI STUECO FINISH, 42° MAX, HT
consisting of operable windows, window wells or exit door that's leads directly AN g O i
o Rl : : ~ oo’ TW 101.0' TH 50" SIDE [®) | n9.0' TF 1135 B FRAM EXISTING AND HROPOSED
outside via staircase and exit door or exit door at grade. N q1.6 BN 16 B — K LINE U) | i A e ™ I35 Ee GRADE
« Window wells/Light wells that intrude into side yard or backyard setbacks of five feet or \\ _ 100l EG 101.0 ES ! ! >- i i .o BA
less, shall require a hinged grating covering the window welllightwell opening. The N IN N 0 | 42" HT e 4 EG 155" TW
grating shall be capable of supporting a weight of 2501b person; yet must be able to be [ A N&S°59'26"N 148 39" | "NON-LOCKABLE" N o1, (N&G°34'30"W | 1145 BA
opened by someone of minimal strength with no special knowledge, efiort or use of P e . . - GATE (N&Q°34' " 145 ES
key or tool, Any modification of previously approved plans related to this condition 3 rgiii T e T G, 1 s L 20 W |4& q524
shall be subject to re-submittal and review by City staff (Fire, Building, Planning). 04" TF —H ; 1 v v ; = ,# j o L - 5
q98.0' TW | ¥ *® v - “
ABBREVIATIONS a0 Ee “ L ] | ] k I | ' g i e | —— (N) MASONRY RETAINING WALL W/
° \ Yy oy % = | It —— P i b = L - _:lL__ _" ] s T L STUCCO FINISH, 42° MAX. HT
6" HIGH CURB v v ] 1 /’ % FROM EXISTING AND PROPOSED
BASIN WALL Wi | [T v - o 4 )‘M 185" TW GRADE
AFF ABOVE FINISH FLOOR i’@%ﬁg \\ ¥ { ExcLuSvE s A | ! K ino ) :
BW BOTIOM OF WALL AR ALY FIE) AN iI5.0
(E) EXISTING pl Y = S PO P I ved / — ; . ‘ o B (
EG EXISTING GRADE 411 EG oAy Vo § ‘ F / P { I | - p
EX. EXISTING 178V ; w . = Aok ; SUBEE IO
T v i G 4 ¢ ! PRIVATE PATIO
FF FINISH FLOOR ot WY, S Zem . ; 155 ¢ _ j
FFL FINISHED FLOOR LINE i ‘ ; | Al J H‘ ‘
FG FINISH GRADE i ! v v \_ T FS v ‘ — 1
FND FOUNDATION 415 TW I, | 4y 48596 ; u ol g -
96.0' B ] . i | ‘ : ﬁ. ‘
FS FINISH SURFACE a6.0' ES ( b ! . : ‘ r i
T FOOT OR FEET ot b= ) LA | , al ]
| 413 viow 2 — | i R 1 1
FIG FOOTING i b v 18" HIGH COMMON ; i : 1 [l IPASED E B 1 O LO
D INSIDE DIAMETER 7 \‘ o Ve ;gf;gsﬁncﬂ , ‘ I ] y 411 " v /
; | I i y
3 RHEHIER ELEVATCH p— s AR | ; AL\ 1 gl . FIRE ACCESS
q5.4' BiA L T shared yard j ! | LA PBOVE F | — | PN
™) NEW il L VRS HOA ‘ L4 = 20-0 DRIVEWAY
TF TOP OF FENCE osa ey MO 100550 FT. | / — S K " MIN. WIDTH
G TOP OF GRATE P 8 i . ‘ A ’ %o : N ’ | . ,
™W TOP OF WALL > ) | A R M1 PROPOSED [RIVENAY._~
o = 3 - i 722 16.0' TR et T \ i
N O F v : L / v, N o | Al S e Foc ZA.O VERS. TO ND INTO
q15' T = \D‘ é.‘u‘, o " / N e - i/ " ' 2.8 ES ! ‘,\;",‘: 9,"';2' /‘: g 4 a 5 |
: & v e K. . . ~T 163" Tin —/ =T 25-0" FRONT. /N A7 Oty :
95.4' B =1 . e ] T . y : — e 1 KX <o K DRIVEWAY S| MAX 10%,
Bae | WA E;v el A \ LOT21 , . B & i SEBACR LI R o5 PORTLAND oléﬁ? CONCRETE WITH
034 TF m :g; x ) b | ' ‘ AFY 263-372-36 k( 3 | o ’ i PO ,2(5f 'O" - XK ke ?ﬁgggﬁgu wwlmﬂ
- ! £ 18" HiGH COMMON ! 7 N Y A N L e N N 2 e
T AR 2 ” = = L — — N i 2 (TR (E) UTILITY POLE (10 REMAIN
915 TH —o ' (N ,6'“ 'I % p R i = 4 oy B & FYSB B 5 B @ %I’L/PROPOSED NEW LOCATION
mame o SSEU=EIT . v LoT22 L 55 T ML T -1’0 j OF FIRE HYDRIANT
o8t J 5  'APN 263-372- =, 150" BN ° - . 8_ ( ) y
1032 TF < ) ' . TES o 4 i8] HT PaveRs.
v ! J % o \ i .
I03.0' TF J \ A S A Ei’BBPRAPLERPgIR ; =
STk v CIVIL PLANS
q45.0' BW 9 ,
woe N\ « D = -
|:| (EXISTING) HATCHED AREA INDICATED THE EXTENT OF LA L P , FOLE &
THE EXISTING BUILDING TO BE REMOVED, _ " | SV AC] [ ] v REMAIN)
' | g I_ Al : 7 - ’
(NEW) SHADED AREA INDICATED THE EXTEND OF THE '°2|3 ™ e W 15-0"A = = ‘ £ Q)
4 NEW BUILDING FOOTPRINTS, j‘g,g‘w : AL
q43' FS | - COM MON | =" — ‘ Q
‘ Al
A SPACE ‘ q — ; A
/O NEW 2X4 WOOD STUD WALL v e Z‘ : omal | r — _
OO NEW 2X6 WOOoD STUD WALL v ;‘EJBT:;O i 42° ) ! ,‘ 18" HIGH BENGH
: ‘ ‘ SEAT
"7 7] CONCRETE BLOCK WALL / BRICK OR VENEER 5 Ty 7 :3':- :;N ‘ l: (i i : ‘ w _
\ g : 5 I
BN WOOD STUD WALL (THERMAL OR SOUND INSULATED) iyl . l Ay ~ J 1
- 102.4' TF BAGIN WAL WITH N ﬂ,\7 ‘ H ‘
(=" WOOD FINISH ’ w © STONE WAL s R S s
DRYWALL FINISH lo2.2" T+ _ v‘:& Ho
g TJS'ITN » EXCLUSIVE USE |
0/ FURRED CEILING OR SOFFIT AREA, e PRIVATE PATIO !
HEIGHT AS NOTED PER PLAN " A \AJ
)V DIFFERENTIAL IN FLOOR LEVELS OR T — 1 ~ A = ]
FINISH SURFACES v | EXISTING WATER b -
REVISION, TYPE AND DATE AS NOTED -t A K / i
PER PLAN SR Yew 2 o . mommy, e s S = ‘ /
B o 1 1] " i 5
@ R ELEV. INDIGATOR., VIEHED FROM A D A 2 | N&4°OqIB"W 14839 Y 42 br _ (148.43'-MAP 1843) 2 4 .
l—Aen BUILDING SECTION, REFERENCE DRAWING 33 BN S5 BA  d66' BN o | n Qg = 5 O 40'-ROS 9524) 6.4 TP 1155 TW BN
NUMBER e Ee 965" EG [ s T e 2 pe , — | 136 TF 14.0' TW 12.0' B
@ DOOR CALLOUT, REFERS TO DOOR ¢ A | n _1;) peEe S| 2R oo EO | "2°| i ) O )
WINDOW SCHEDULE \ I | 1015 ES i
ALL WALLS AND FENCING I NEW WOOD FENGE ON LOW ,10-0 8-5 3Z2-2
@ WINDOW CALLOUT, REFERS TO DOOR 4 ON NEIGHBORING | LINE OF LOW RETAINING WALL AND TRETAINNG WAL, HAXINR / z
WINDOW SCHEDULE PROPERTY TO REMAN | FENCE B2 FENCE / WAL DETALLS. TYPICAL AT FRONT TARD ROW 1 STREET WIDTH
2 L]
| SN o siger e NOTES LINE OF LOM RETAINING WAL AND |omm e naboionD)
FENCE SEE FENCE / WALL DETAILS | EXISTING &' TALL WOOD
SHOWING UPPER 24" OF FENGE 50% R YARD CETRACK FENCE TO BE REMOVED
SECTIONS, E ATIONS AND DETAILS OPEN (SBMC 1720.040(0.2) I
! B
D
XX FIBERGLASS BATT INSULATION AS NOTED FPER PLAN REFER TO SHEET AO-1.2 FOR : ()
5 WoOD, ROUGH, CONTINJOUS FRAMING MEMBER EXISTING SITE PLAN, DEPICTING : !
0 WoOD, ROUGH, NON-CONTINUOUS BLOCKING MEMBER ALL EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS I NORTH
I
—e DETAIL, REFERENCE DRAWING NUMBER S ITE P LAN :
ROOF DRAINS SHALL CONNECT

ELEVATION DATUM FPOINT

DIRECTLY TO SITE DRAINAGE

SCALE: I" = |0'-O"

LEGAL DESC.:

LOT 21 and 22 OF THE RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 2 TO 11,

INCLUSIVE OF CYPRUS TRACT, IN THE CITY SOLANA BEACH, COUNTY OF SAN

DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO MAP THEREOCF NO. 1843, FILED

IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY JULY 2, 1925.

PRO.ECT DESC.:

LOT CONSOLIDATION OF LOTS 21 AND 22, DEMOLITION

OF EXISTING SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURE.

REMOVAL OF THE EXISTING DRIVENAY, SITE WALLS, AND FENCES. REMOVAL
OF MATURE TREES AND SUBSEGQUENT PLANTING OF NEW TREES AND
LANDSCAPE. NEN PERVICUS DRIVEWAY, PROPOSED (4) SINGLE-FAMILY
2-STORY HOMES. HOMES TO HAVE 3 BEDROOMS, 3 1/2 BATHS, COVERED
PATIO, A DECK, 2-CAR GARAGE AND 3 ADDITIONAL PARALLEL OFF STREET
SPACES. EXISTING RETAINING WALL ALONG NORTH PROPERTY LINE TO REMAIN.

ADDRESS:

APN.:
ZONES:
DENSITY:

CONSTR. TYPE:
OCC. GROUP:
BUILDING HEIGHT:
No. OF STORIES:
F.F. ELEVATION:

GROSS LOT AREA:

NET LOT AREA:
REQ'D. SETBACKS:

MAX. FAR.:
GROSS F.AR. AREA:

A

CLIMATE ZONE:
PARKING REQUIRED:

RELEVANT CODES:

127, 129 N. GRANADCS AVE, SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA
2075

263-372-26, 263-372-27
MHR (MEDIUM-HIGH RESIDENTIAL)
& DU/NET ACRE, (W/ DRP = 12 DU/NET ACRE)

.33 ACRE X 12 = 3.96 UNITS (ROUNDS TO 4 UNITS
PROPOSED)

*DENSITY ADRJUSTMENT FOR SENSITIVE LANDS PER TABLE
17.20.020-C

. SLOPES LESS THAN 25% GRADE =10
3.96 UNITS X 1.0 = 3.96 UNITS (ROUNDS TO 4 UNITS)
. NO OTHER SENSITIVE AREAS IMPACT SITE
V-B (SPRINKLERED)
R-3/7V
25'-0" MAX, ALLONED / 25'-0" PROPOSED
2

UNIT 1 = 106.46', UNIT 2 = 104.449", UNIT 3 = 98.84', UNIT 4 =
495.54'

LOT 21 = 7420 SF. (GROSS) / LOT 22 = 6,961 SF. (GROSS)
LOT CONSOLIDATION:

TOTAL LOT AREA = 14,281 SF. (6ROSS)

TOTAL LOT AREA = 14,381 SF.

SETBACK DESIGNATOR = d / FRONT: 25'-0", REAR: 250",
SIDE: 5'-0"

0.5

14,381 LOT SF. X 15 ALLOWED (15%) = 10,786 SF. MAX.
ALLOWED FAR.

PROPOSED: 5,581 SF. / 14,381 LOT AREA = 59.6%
PROPOSED F.AR. (SEE CALCULATION ON SHEET AO-2.1
AND AO-3.2)

1

TNO COVERED SFACES PER MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION
17.52.040. TNO SPACES PROVIDED IN GARAGE OF EACH
UNIT. * 1 ADDITIONAL GUEST PARKING SPACES

NWORK SHALL COMPLY WITH THE 2016 CALIFORNIA

BUILDING, GREEN, ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING AND FIRE CODES, THE
2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING ENERGY EFFICIENCY STANDARDS AND THE CITY OF
SOLANA BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE.

edingerArchitects

444 S. Cedros Ave, #235
Solana Beach, CA 92075

phone:  (858) 704-4004

AREA CALCULATIONS / F.AR.

127-129 N. GRANADOS AVE.

GRANADOS AVENUE PARTNERS, LLC

PLANNING SET
PLAN CHECK SUBMITTAL _ OO/OO/I
/\ PLANNING CORR. O5/01/18
A\ PLANNING CORR. 08&/22/18
A\ STORY POLE CERT. _ 12/18/8
/A STORY POLE CERT. _ 0l/03/4
£\ PLAN B REVISIONS __04/22/19
STORY POLE CERT. __lO/30/d

/A\ COUNCIL MEETING REV._1I/20/14

LOT AREA (6ROSS) 14381.00
MAX. ALLOWED GROSS AREA (15%) 10;166.00
BULDING FOOTPRINT (EXTERIOR FINISH —
LOT COVERAGE 5367.00
TOTAL FIRST FLOOR 6RO5S (INGLUDING 5367.00
TOTAL SECOND FLR. 6ROSS (INCLUDING STAIR,
VOLUME SPACES OVER I5' AND COVERED 481400
PATIO)
GARAGE AREA EXCLUDED (8-SPACES) Jsoo00 £
TOTAL GRO5S AREA &581.00
EROS5 FAR. (15 MAX) 596
UNIT | - 1969 SQ. FT.
FIRST FLOOR LIVABLE 144
SECOND FLOOR LIVABLE 1220
GARAGE 570
o —=
PORCH (COVERED, NOT PART OF F.AR) 5l
DECK (UNCOVERED, NOT PART OF F.AR) loq
UNIT 2 - |dT76 SQ. FT.
FIRST FLOOR LIVABLE 751
SECOND FLOOR LIVABLE 1,219
GARAGE 570
b
PORCH (COVERED, NOT PART OF F.AR.) 49
DECK (UNCOVERED, NOT PART OF F.AR) o4
UNIT 3 - 1794 SQ. FT. A
FIRST FLOOR LIVABLE 822
SECOND FLOOR LIVABLE a12
GARAGE 536
TOTAL LIVABLE (WITH 6ARASE) { /A\ 2330
DECK (UNCOVERED, NOT PART OF FAR) 13
UNIT 4 - |d62 sQ. FT.
FIRST FLOOR LIVABLE 822
SECOND FLOOR LIVABLE 140
GARAGE 536
o
DECK (INCOVERED, NOT PART OF FAR) 155

TITLE SHEET /
SITE PLAN

16019-SITE

eA18019

AO-1.

L

B5/14/20 o

5/14/20



kvinson
Stamp


ALL DRAWINGS AND WRITTEN MATERIALS APPEARING HEREIN CONSTITUTE ORIGINAL AND UNPUBLISHED WORK AND ARE THE PROPERTY OF EDINGER ARCHITECTS, DEVELOPED FOR USE ON THIS PROJECT AND MAY NOT BE DUPLICATED, USED OR DISCLOSED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF EDINGER ARCHITECTS.

- —
| |
\_I —
\
\
\ )
i |
,\ )
| |
\ )
R |
_ '\ -
\\ |
| | *
\ EXISTING 3' TALL l
~ ! WOOD FENCE TO BE -
I \ REMOVED UP TO SITEI
< O \_\ PROPERTY LINE,
Qg | ,
o) +
pal I |
R :
N Ol w
iy |
N \QI ud .
o =
L] NE |
o M (.8 \
o RS |
Ty ° .
NN Q |
Q¢ Zz
S Q) )
Z9] |
\-’ -
I |
|
: |
I |
) |
l |
|
: |
| |
. |
I L

EXISTING 3' TALL BLOCK WALL
W/ &' TALL WOOD FENCE ABOVE
LOCATED ON NEIGHBORING
PROPERTY TO REMAIN

EXISTING 4' TALL BLOCK WALL
W/ &' TALL VINYL FENCE ABOVE
LOCATED ON NEIGHBORING
PROPERTY TO REMAIN

N&&°5A26"W  148.39"

| — — | e— —
—
| — ) — | e e—— | e——

EXISTING 12" TALL
BLOCK WALL TO BE
REMOVED

EXISTING BUILDING

EXISTING TREES TO BELOW W/ WALKWAY

BE REMOVED. ABOVE LOCATED ON
NEIGHBORING PROPERTY
EXISTING WooD TO REMAIN
GATE ON
NEIGHBORING
PROPERTY TO EXISTING 12' TALL BLOCK
REMAIN WALL TO BE REMOVED
&9°34'30"N 148 .48'-MAP, | 43)
E9°34'30"NW 148.40'-ROS 24)
I

EXISTING SITE STAIRS
AND 12" RETAINING
WALL TO BE REMOVED

LOT 21
APN 263-372-26

&" TREE

LOT 22

EXISTING TREES TO
BE REMOVED.

"W 148349

LOCATED ON NEIGHBORING
PROPERTY TO REMAIN

«i B ER R EEEDRORORNODIODOEBS

EXISTING &' TALL WOOD FENCE

EXISTING 5' TALL
CHAIN LINK FENCE TO
BE REMOVED AND
REPLACED WITH &'
TALL WOOD FENCE W/
24" TOP SECTION TO
&'-O" HT. (50% OPEN)

SITE DEMO PLAN

APN 263-372-2

—— EXISTING 2' TAl|L
WALL LOCATED ON
NEIGHBORING |
PROPERTY TO Il'lEMAIN

/— EXISTING 4 TAIJ.L
WALL LOCATED ON

NEIGHBORING |
PROPERTY TO REMAIN

EXISTING STAIRiS TO
BE REMOVED |

— |
| : |
: DASHED OUTLINE \\ ; '
INDICATES EXISTING — EXISTING 4" TALL
I GARAGE TO BE BLOCK WALL T® BE
O ) DEMOLISHED. REMOVED |
12" TREE | B |
f ] |
I |
’ |
| — EXISTING 3'-5' |
' - RETAINING WALL TO
| ) BE REMOVED |
, |
| |
G[G|[E] |
| * |
: &" TREE |
| |
YN\ !
I . 9 |
’ H- 90 |
| QF |
* G S -
DASHED OUTLINE | I S N n & '
INDICATES EXISTING O |
BUILDING TO BE CHWY) |
DEMOLISHED. | AR o
- EXISTING TREES TO
i W ] BE REMO\Il/ED.
+ O«—Hf8: !
| ° l
36" TREE BQo |
. i
_ 5 |
: €M |
I & |
. 6" T%E L |
. O !
| ] Q |
: l
| ! |
I .
| l
] | >~ EXISTING TREES iro
— EXISTING SITE STAIRS BE REMOVED.
| AND 3'-5' RETAINING - |
! WALL TO BE REMOVED REE '
| EE |
: |
RE |
i |
: l
EXISTING 4' TALL |
| WOOD FENCE TO BE
6" TREE ' B REMOVED l
A D[ 12D TREE C— — ) |
6" TREE — = . !
6" TREE &" TREE |
1] o ]
SR I | L ’ . _ — _w ;
(148 43,K1A 3) i
EXISTING ' TALL WALL
(148 40'-ROS 9524) LOCATED|ON
PROPERTY LINE TO
REMAIN
EXISTING TREES TO EXISTING p' TALL
BE REMOVED. WoOD FENCE TO
BE REMOYED
EXISTING 12" TALL WALL LOCATED EE'SREE,%\EEEE’ Te

ON NEIGHBORING PROPERTY TO
REMAIN

EXISTING B' TALL WALL
LOCATED|ON
NEIGHBONRING
PROPERT| TO REMAIN

NORTH

SCALE: I/18" = I'-O"

(N
Y%

=
e
o2
X
£
LINE OF GRADE }_ FUST CENTERS —‘
L 5X5=97" -
PRIVACY FENCING
WOOD FENCE DETAILA B
SCALE :3/4" = 1'-0"
16019-SITE J
e
i = -
———— Jl=6
— BT
- 9z
R -
R
e | R T
‘\ A | 'I\l\" I P | I —| PN B BT R P \v 1l ‘\- ||-\
RN POST CENTERS R
P L = VR
SF 5X 5=97" 5
>/<\\' PRIVACY FENCING §//<

BLOCK WALL W/ WOOD FENCE DETAIL

SCALE :3/4" = 1'-0"
16019-SITE

A\

~
_/

I

edingerArchitects

444 S. Cedros Ave, #235
Solana Beach, CA 92075

phone: (858) 704-4004

GRANADOS AVENUE PARTNERS, LLC

127-129 N. GRANADOS AVE.

PLANNING SET

PLAN CHECK SUBMITTAL  OO/00/17

/\ PLANNING CORR. o5/01/18

/2 PLANNING CORR. 08/22/18

A COUNCIL MEETING REV. _11/20/19

SITE DEMO
PLAN

16019-SITE

AO-1.2

5/14/20 °

eA16019

5/14/20



AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°09'18"W  148.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(148.40'-ROS 9524)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(148.43'-MAP 1843)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE : 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE : 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK WALL W/ WOOD FENCE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL 24" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL 24" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°59'26"W  148.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°00'34"E  96.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N89°34'30"W 148.40'-ROS 9524)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N00°25'30"E  96.70'-ROS 9524)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N89°34'30"W 148.48'-MAP 1843)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N00°25'30"E 96.70'-ROS 9524)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°00'34"E  97.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N00°25'30"E 97.13'-MAP 1843)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N00°25'30"E          96.65'-MAP 1843)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN CHECK SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
00/00/17

AutoCAD SHX Text
127-129 N. GRANADOS AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANADOS AVENUE PARTNERS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
eA16019

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL  DRAWINGS  AND  WRITTEN  MATERIALS  APPEARING  HEREIN  CONSTITUTE  ORIGINAL  AND  UNPUBLISHED  WORK  AND  ARE  THE  PROPERTY  OF  EDINGER  ARCHITECTS,   DEVELOPED  FOR  USE  ON  THIS  PROJECT  AND  MAY  NOT  BE  DUPLICATED,  USED  OR  DISCLOSED  WITHOUT  THE  WRITTEN  CONSENT  OF  EDINGER  ARCHITECTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16019-SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/14/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/14/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEMO PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A0-1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNING SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEMO PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/01/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNING CORR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/22/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNING CORR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/20/19

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNCIL MEETING REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7


USED OR DISCLOSED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF EDINGER ARCHITECTS.

DEVELOPED FOR USE ON THIS PROJECT AND MAY NOT BE DUPLICATED,

ALL DRAWINGS AND WRITTEN MATERIALS APPEARING HEREIN CONSTITUTE ORIGINAL AND UNPUBLISHED WORK AND ARE THE PROPERTY OF EDINGER ARCHITECTS,

-

r\-\—\_\_\-\-\—\_\_\_\-\-\

CONCRETE STEPPERS
(UINOBSTRUCTED PATH
OF TRAVEL DOWN
PROPERTY LINE)

CONCRETE STEPS -
UNOBSTRUCTED PATH
OF TRAVEL DOWN
PROPERTY LINE

N e wlb itk ol L N (ST AP

| 42" HT. GATE ,
| "NON-LOCKING"

|

|\ CONCRETE STEPS -

UNOBSTRUCTED PATH

| OF TRAVEL DOWN

| PROPERTY LINE

|

| — —— | —

Unit 4

| E—
LINE OF 150" FIRE
DEPARTMENT HOSE

1 PULL

I

I
1
n

!

]

1

I

I

I

I

]

]

! -
1 CONCRETE STEPS |

: PATH OF TRAVEL |

I PER LANDSCAPE ! /-
I |

X 7 T 1

L

n A ' CLEAR PATH ON
Ny CH SIDE OF
¥ PRRKING SPAGE
H
11

L L

___\l«__\.______

_\_\_\_\_\_\_\—\—\-\-\-\-\-\-\-\-\ﬁ

LINE OF I150' FIRE
DEPARTMENT HOSE
PULL

L

nit 3 .

CONCRETE STEPPERS
(UNOBSTRUCTED PATH OF
TRAVEL DOWN PROPERTY LINE)

I — I —
— I —

CONCRETE STEPS -

UNOBSTRUCTED PATH
OF TRAVEL DOWN
PROPERTY LINE

-‘-‘_‘_‘-‘-‘_‘H,

%%

—1

F\—\—\—\—

NN 4N

APN 263-372-2

PATH OF TRAVEL

|

AN B ) W S S
ﬁ& LOT 21 SLOPED DRIVEWAY

APN 263-372-26

nit 2

LINE OF I150' FIRE
DEPARTMENT HOSE
PULL

~_ N

A

B

]

B N

— ENHANCED PAYING
PATIO (PATH GF
RAVEL)

I

THIS PLAN IS SOLELY USED TO DEPICT FIRE
DEPARTMENT ACCESS POINTS AND HOSE
PULL LENGTHS, REFER TO SHEET AO-1.1 FOR
ALL NOTES NOT SHOWN HERE

]
/— ||&.257

UNIT 1| AND 4
MAX HOSE PULL
LENGTH = 150"-0"

18.0" F5

2% MAX
SLOPE > /

ACH DIRECTION

D DRIVENLAY SLOPED MAX 2%, LANDSCAPE
PAVERS INSTALLED IN 90 DEGREE
HARRINGBONE PATTERN CAPABLE OF
SUPPORITING A MINIMUM OF 15,000 LBS.
PRODUGT SPECIFICATIONS TO BE-APPROVED
PRIOR TO INSTALLATIONS.

0'-0" WIDE\

DRIVEWAY

—— DRIVEWAY SLOPED MAX 10%, PORTLAND
CEMENT CONCRETE WITH DEEP BROOM FINISH
F’ERPENDI}SULAR TO DIRECTION OF TRAVEL
FOR CLEAR APPROVED FIRE ACCESS

b

16.649' FS

7.35' F$
17.45' FS

UN[Tj AND 3
MAX HOSE PULL
LENGTH = 150-0"
EACH!DIRECTION

L y

SOLANA BCH FIRE NOTES

= o
I
I
I

OF TRAVEL DOWN
PROPERTY LINE)

CONCRETE STEPPERS
(UNOBSTRUCTED PATH

\ CONCRETE STEPS - j

UNOBSTRUCTED PATH

\ CONCRETE STEPS -

UNOBSTRUCTED PATH
OF TRAVEL DOWN

OF/TRAVEL DOWN
PROPERTY LINE

\ PROPERTY LINE
42" HT. GATE ,

"NON-LOCKIN&G"

CONCRETE
STEPPERS
(UNOBSTRUCTED
PATH OF TRAVEL
DOWN PROPERTY
LINE)

FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS SITE PLAN

CONCRETE STEPS -
UNOBSTRUCTED PATH
OF TRAVEL DOWN
PROPERTY LINE

\

UNOBSTRUGTED PATH
OF TRAVEL DOWN
PROPERTY] LINE

NORTH

SCALE: I/1&6" = I'-O"

o

OBSTRUCTION OF ROADWAYS DURING CONSTRUCTION: All roadways shall be
a minimum of 24 feet in width during construction and maintained free and clear,
including the parking of vehicles, in accordance with the California Fire Code and the
Fire Department.

ADDRESS NUMBERS: STREET NUMBERS: Approved numbers and/or addresses
shall be placed on all new and existing buildings and at appropriate additional
locations as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or roadway fronting the
property from either direction of approach. Said numbers shall contrast with their
background, and shall meet the following minimum standards as to size; 4" high with a
14" inch stroke width for residential buildings, 8" high with a ¥4" stroke for commercial
and multi-family residential buildings, 12" high with a 1" stroke for industrial buildings.
Additional numbers shall be required where deemed necessary by the Fire Marshal,
such as rear access doors, building corners, and entrances to commercial centers.

AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM: ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLINGS:
Structures shall be protected by an automatic fire sprinkler system designed and
installed to the satisfaction of the Fire Department. Plans for the automatic fire
sprinkler system shall be approved by the Fire Department prior to installation.

SMOKE DETECTORS/CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS/FIRE SPRINKLER
SYSTEMS: Smoke detectors/carbon monoxide alarms/fire sprinklers shall be
inspected by the Solana Beach Fire Department.

CLASS “A” ROOF: All structures shall be provided with a Class "A” Roof covering to
the satisfaction of the Solana Beach Fire Department.

BASEMENT:

« All basements shall be designed and equipped with emergency exit systems
consisting of operable windows, window wells or exit door that's leads directly
outside via staircase and exit door or exit door at grade.

Window wells/Light wells that intrude into sicle yard or backyard setbacks of five feet or
less, shall require a hinged grating covering the window wellllightwell opening. The
grating shall be capable of supporting a weight of 250Ib person; yet must be able to be
opened by someone of minimal strength with no special knowledge, effort or use of
key or tool. Any modification of previously approved plans related to this condition
shall be subject to re-submittal and review by City staff (Fire, Building, Planning).

edingerArchitects

444 S. Cedros Ave, #235
Solana Beach, CA 92075

phone: (858) 704-4004

127-129 N. GRANADOQOS AVE.
GRANADOS AVENUE PARTNERS, LLC

PLANNING SET

PLAN CHECK SUBMITTAL  OO/00/17

/\ PLANNING CORR. o5/01/18
/A\ PLANNING CORR. 08/22/18
/5\ PLAN 3 REVISIONS 04/22/19
/E\ STORY POLE CERT. __l0/30/\d

FIRE DEPARTMENT
ACCESS SITE PLAN

16019-SITE eA16019
AO0-1.3
.
5/14/20 ) 5/14/20



AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN CHECK SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
00/00/17

AutoCAD SHX Text
127-129 N. GRANADOS AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANADOS AVENUE PARTNERS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
eA16019

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL  DRAWINGS  AND  WRITTEN  MATERIALS  APPEARING  HEREIN  CONSTITUTE  ORIGINAL  AND  UNPUBLISHED  WORK  AND  ARE  THE  PROPERTY  OF  EDINGER  ARCHITECTS,   DEVELOPED  FOR  USE  ON  THIS  PROJECT  AND  MAY  NOT  BE  DUPLICATED,  USED  OR  DISCLOSED  WITHOUT  THE  WRITTEN  CONSENT  OF  EDINGER  ARCHITECTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16019-SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/14/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/14/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A0-1.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNING SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLANA BCH FIRE NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/01/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNING CORR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/22/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNING CORR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/22/19

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 3 REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/30/19

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORY POLE  CERT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PLAN IS SOLELY USED TO DEPICT FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS POINTS AND HOSE PULL LENGTHS, REFER TO SHEET A0-1.1 FOR ALL NOTES NOT SHOWN HERE 


TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP
17-17-47 DRP/SDP/SUB

127-129 N GRANADOS AVE

CONDOMINIUM NOTE:

THIS IS A TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP OF A CONDOMINIUM SUBDIVISION
PROJECT AS DEFINES IN SECTION 1351 OF THE CMIL CODE OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND IS FILED PURSUANT TO THE SUBDIVISION
MAP ACT. THIS PROJECT IS COMPRISED OF A ONE LOT CONDOMINIUM
SUBDIVISION. THE DEVELOPMENT OF THIS SITE SHALL CONTAIN A

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

SHEET

I OF 2

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT | AM THE RECORD OWNER OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN ON THE

ATTACHED TENTATIVE MAP AND THAT SAID MAP SHOWS THE ENTRIE CONTIGUOUS OWNERSHIP. |
UNDERSTAND THAT PROPERTY IS CONSIDERED CONTIGOUS EVEN IF IT SI SEPARATED BY ROADS,
STREETS, UTILITY EASEMENTS, OR RAILRAOD RIGHT—OF—WAYS.

AP 263-372-26 &7 MAXIMUM OF 4 CONDOMINIUM RESIDENTIAL UNITS. OWNER:
) GRADING NOTE:
STABILIZE & GRADING SHOWN HERON IS CONCEPTUAL ONLY. FINAL GRADING PLANS CRANADOS (niENUE PARTNERS, LLC DATE
o COMPACTE GRADE WILL BE SUBMITTED AND APPROVED PRIOR TO FINAL MAP APPROVAL. SOLANA BEACH, CA, 92075
EXISTING EDGE OF
PAVEMENT fi/f 2% 2% MIN
/I
) GRANADOS AVENUE PARTNERS, LLC
EXISTING ASPHALT - = SUBDIVIDER & DEVELOPER 127 N GRANADOS AVE,
TN 5 SOLANA BEACH, CA, 92075
J e
\ |
: i RE 127 & 129 N GRANADOS AVE
o SITE ADDRESS SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075
i LEGEND
T ITEM DESCRIPTION svmgoL LEGAL DESCRIPTION LOTS 210" 11, INGLUSVE, OF CYPRUS |
- TRACT, IN THE CITY OF SOLANA BEACH,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO MAP
PROPERTY LINE T - THEREOF NO. 1843, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF
THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO
9"X9"X12" CONCRETE CURB ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE COUNTY, JULY 3, 1925
NOT TO SCALE PROPOSED SETBACKS — —
PROPOSED HARDSCAPE PER A.PN. 263-372-26 & 263-372-27
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PLANS
PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE 753 ACREAGE TOTAL 14,381 SF (0.33 AC)
EXISTING CONTOUR LINE GROSS 14,381 SF (0.33 AC)
97x9"x12" CONCRETE CURB PROPOSED MASONRY RETANING T ———— NET 14,381 SF (0.35 AC)
T \ VARIES ROW AREA DEVOTED TO PUBLIC STREETS 0 SF
8.95' —\ — £26’ : PRIVATE ROADS 0 SF
! 13 ' STREET DEDICATION 0 SF
¢ I MINIMUM NET PARCEL SIZE 14,381 SF
S VARIES VARIES . K’fff_ _ MAXIMUM NET PARCEL SIZE 14,381 SF
—Qﬁgﬁgﬁgﬁgﬁl ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz—: ' AVERAGE NET PARCEL SIZE 14,381 SF
=== = R N e e g e O N N T T T T [ E# |
IEEHEEEREEEE S TS == = TOTAL LOTS LOT CONSOLIDATION TO 1 LOT
SIS S T
—TH=1= TOTAL UNITS 4 RESIDENTIAL UNITS
NORTH GRANADOS AVENUE TYPICAL SECTION UNIT AREAS UNIT 1 FIRST FLOOR 749 SF (LIVABLE)
NOT TO SCALE SECOND FLOOR 1,220 SF (LIVABLE)
GARAGE 570 SF
UNIT 2 FIRST FLOOR 757 SF (LIVABLE)
SECOND FLOOR 1,219 SF (LIVABLE)
GARAGE 570 SF
UNIT 3 FIRST FLOOR 822 SF (LIVABLE)
SECOND FLOOR 972 SF (LIVABLE)
GARAGE 536 SF
UNIT 4 FIRST FLOOR 822 SF (LIVABLE)
SECOND FLOOR 1,140 SF (LIVABLE)
GARAGE 536 SF
GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION MEDIUM / HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL
ZONING REGULATIONS N/A
FLOOR AREA RATIO 0.75
DENSITY 8 DU/NET ACRE, (W/ DRP = 12 DU/NET AC)
0.329 ACRE X 12 DU/AC = 3.96 UNITS (ROUNDS TO 4)
PER TABLE 17.20.030—C OF SOLANA BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE
SLOPES LESS THAN 25% = 1.0
3.96 UNITS X 1.0 = 3.96 UNITS (ROUNDS TO 4 UNITS)
HEIGHT 25’ MAX ALLOWED, 2 STORIES
PARCEL COVERAGE 5,367 SF
LANDSCAPING 4,226 SF / 3,303 IRRIGATED
SETBACKS FRONT YARD 25 FEET
INTERIOR YARD 5 FEET
REAR YARD 25 FEET
SIDE YARD 5 FEET
2" HARDWOOD
MULCH/ GRASS OVERFLOW 18™18" BROOKS BOX PRESENT USE RESIDENTIAL
COVER OR CITY
APPROVED OR EQUIV. PROPOSED USE RESIDENTIAL
EQUIVALENT TOP OF GRATE TO MATCH
¢ ELEVATION OF OVERFLOW EDGE ACCESS ACCESS IS FROM N GRANADOS AVE
RETAINING WALL ggg\l/%o’?gzt;mc UTILITIES WATER SANTA FE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
R R g FIRE SOLANA BEACH FIRE DEPT.
- SEWER SOLANA BEACH SANITATION DISTRICT
DROUGHT TOLERANT — | / CABLE/INTERNET AT&T TV & INTERNET
PLANTS (TYP.) \ Y ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ~ SOLANA BEACH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SOLANA BEACH , L 1’ 1.1] _~—1—CHECK VALVE HIGH SCHOOL SAN_DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL
L‘?VGI%/%E%ZD son ] D e DISTRICT
*SEE NOTE BELOW \» \'\ SOLAR STATEMENT
2 R o Bm R THIS IS A SOLAR SUBDVISION AS REQUIRED BY THE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE.
W / o — AND RIP RAP ALL PARCELS TO HAVE AT LEAST 100 S QUARE FEET OF UNOBSTRUCTED
< 12" LAYER OF 3/4” GRAVEL——1t-y N ACCESS TO SUNLIGHT ON THE BUILDABLE PORTION OF THE PARCEL.
*SEE NOTE BELOW ) e
‘ TOPOGRAPHY IS DRAWN FROM A FIELD SURVEY PERFORMED BY
a PP SYSTEM/ 6" PERFORATED PIPE, SLOPE INFORMATION GRADING INFORMATION TOPOGRAPHY oo 0" ARET SUITER 4 ASSOGIATES, INC.
Q INLET INTO CATCH BASIN e AMOUNT [OV]
Z * BIORETENTION "ENGINEERED SOIL” LAYER SHALL BE MINIMUM 24" DEEP MAP PREPARED BY: ’;ggcz %’;@Tr f_/%fx A)é" 7’?)3150‘53%;5_5 |
% "SANDY LOAM” SOIL MIX WITH NO MORE THAN 5% CLAY CONTENT. THE MIX 0—-25% (15,114 Sk SITE_GRADING 1252 SoLANA BeacH on anors”
> SHALL CONTAIN 50-60% SAND, 20-30% COMPOST OR HARDWOORD MULCH, FOOTING EXCAV. 3582508312
AND 20-30% TOPSOIL, FREE OF STONES, STUMPS, ROOTS, OR SIMILAR : 96
- OBJECTS, AND ALSO FREE OF NOXIOUS WEEDS. R & R 565
"/ = 3/4” CRUSHED ROCK LAYER SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 12" BUT MAY 25—40% | 993 SF TOTAL GRADING 1913 By:
BE DEEPENED TO INCREASE THE INFILTRATION AND STORAGE ABILITY OF
THE DETAIL THE EFFECTIVE AREA OF THE BASIN SHALL BE LEVEL AND EARTHWORK R AN S ROOLINO b 10 /31,2021
SHALL BE SIZED BASED ON CALCULATION. TYPICALLY, THE SURFACE AREA CUT + FOOTING PASCO LARET SUTIER & ASSOCIATES
OF THE BIORETENTION BASIN IS 4% OF THE IMPERVIOUS AREA DRAINING TO SPOILS 880
IT. ALL BIORETENTION PLANTERS TO BE DEPRESSED AT LEAST 6" BELOW DATE PREPARED 8/11/17
ADJACENT FINISHED SURFACE 40% + | 274 SF FILL 372 REVISED  DECEMBER 2017
JANUARY 2018
BIORETENTION AREA DETAIL EXPORT 508 JUNE 2018
SEPTEMBER 2018
" BECEMBER 2019
VICINITY MAP EXCAVATION APRIL 2020
508 C.Y. EXPORT
COASTAL COMMISSION PERMIT NO.
ENGINEER OF WORK CITY APPROVED CHANGES APPD |DATEl  RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION BENCH MARK CITY OF SOLANA BEACH DRAWING NO.
MONUMENT STATION: "SOLB—1" PER SOLANA BEACH CONTROL |PRELIMINARY GRADING PLAN FOR:
NETWORK
SEL By: Date: By: By: . »
Drawn By | Name: BRIAN ARDOLINO Review Engineer ,City Engineer R.C.E. QSEOSL%—LZ‘:ZS 357?,:25001%,\1/‘ BEACH BRASS DISC STAMPED 127 & 129 N. GRANADOS AVE.
R.C.E. 71651 Exp: 12/31/21 Date: Date: Exp: ELEV: 71.45° DATUM: NAVD 88 SHEET 1 OF 2

PLSA 2615




GENERAL NOTES

APPROVAL OF THIS GRADING PLAN DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL OF VERTICAL OR HORIZONTAL
ALIGNMENT OF ANY PRIVATE ROAD SHOWN HEREIN FOR PUBLIC ROAD PURPOSES.

PRELIMINARY GRADING PLAN

SHEET 2 OF 2

2. FINAL APPROVAL OF THESE GRADING PLANS IS SUBJECT TO FINAL APPROVAL OF THE ASSOCIATED
IMPROVEMENT PLANS WHERE APPLICABLE. FINAL CURB GRADE ELEVATIONS MAY REQUIRE CHANGES IN WORK TO BE DONE
THESE PLANS. THE IMPROVEMENTS CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING WORK TO BE DONE

3. IMPORT MATERIALS SHALL BE LEGALLY OBTAINED. ACCORDING  TO THESE PLANS AND THE LATEST EDITIONS OF:

4. A SEPARATE PERMIT FROM THE CITY ENGINEER WILL BE REQUIRED FOR ANY WORK IN THE PUBLIC 222 BARBARA AVE, #24 NON—-LOCKABLE 157 N GRANADOS AVE #38
RIGHT-OF—WAY. \ APN 263-372—13—00 N APN 263-372-25-00 50

- ” - - 1 15-5 TW 1 18.5 TW A ’
G AL S 00 DT 0 TN, SU S O A D o tor0 7 ST o N O - N a5 EEBIIESS [ 4@ o™ | STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS
COMMENCING WORK. NOTICE OF PROPOSED WORK SHALL BE GIVEN TO THE FOLLOWING AGENCIES: 97.8 BW\ 97.8 BW\ SCTANING WALL PER 10150 fs 92 IC |l 1048 W | <reppeRs 113.5 BW T4.0 E6/ 115.0 £G < HYDRANT @ (1) STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION
100.1 G\ 101.0 EG 01.50 Fs 104.589JE | || /1040 BW 106.00 FS 114 W, = 9735 gg \ (INSTALL G71 : N. GRANADOS AND IMENTS
UNDERGROUND S.A. (800)—227-2600 - .00 FS 1048 Fo 06.50 Fs 111:0 BW 6” CURB 115.5 BW 11903 Fo | EL VIENTO ST (2) CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION "MANUAL OF
B T A ' : 111.4 £ \L13.50 FG 115.5 EG 119.48 FG | 1923 FC TRAFFIC CONTROLS FOR CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE
7. THE SOILS REPORTS SHALL BE PROVIDED AS REQUIRED BY THE CITY OF SOLANA BEACH PRIOR TO 1w I R 98OFS e N 08 0 _— 8B s WORK ZONES”
ISSUANCE OF A GRADING PERMIT. 96.0 EC B T AR oy e A : 113.00 IE]| 58 FGL e t (3) STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
: R R Ny o = = i =] === 404 — iy —. . D6 19.92 18 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS
8. APPROVAL OF THESE PLANS BY THE CITY ENGINEER DOES NOT AUTHORIZE ANY WORK OR GRADING o eze e N B F _ —taelze) L i - AREA:
TO BE PERFORMED UNTIL THE PROPERTY OWNER’S PERMISSION HAS BEEN OBTAINED AND A VALID o 961 BW - Y9Z5 T 97.9 € 101.50 Fs 104.75 IE T a7 -”1'1 5 255TG BENCH 2% | 2% L
GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED. 367.;5 BTWW MW .. ez1rre o ] 965 E RETAINING WALL ‘PER ~—|N\104.00 Fs 1435 IE \ 11112.3 I <= = 118.75 FG | STANDARD DRAWINGS
. TN T P _ . %

9. THE CITY ENGINEER'S APPROVAL OF THESE PLANS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE THE BUILDING OFFICIAL'S o7iec M. . R o 03 WiTH | \ [\ 108.00 Fs = 115.50 FS 114.0 EG W 11850 Fs (1) SAN DIEGO REGIONAL STANDARD DRAWINGS
APPROVAL OF ANY FOUNDATION FOR STRUCTURES TO BE PLACED ON THE AREA COVERED BY THESE LT ——— ™ [UPPER SECOND FF CARAGE 105.9. TW 116.3 16 INSTALL 4" \118.83 IB (2) STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PLANS. NO WAIVER OF THE GRADING ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS CONCERNING MINIMUM COVER OVER o7h T r N | |Cower SeconD ;é;;g o forgs | 10139 FS ] 11074 B  GARAGE UNIT 1 1147 IE PV PIPE 175 : STANDARD PLANS
EXPANSIVE SOILS IS MADE OR IMPLIED. 975 W IR+ + M NG : - 100.19 IE ‘ , )

10. ALL OPERATIONS CONDUCTED ON THE PREMISES, INCLUDING THE WARMING UP, REPAIR, ARRIVAL, 960 EGIMT Y, R s LOWER PAD 97.88 ] I 104.70 IE ' FIRST FLOOR FF 106.46’ = |
DEPARTURE OR RUNNING OF TRUCKS, EARTHMOVING EQUIPMENT, CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT AND ANY AV g ——— UNIT 2 = N | PAD 105.82" 7 | 11794 5 |
OTHER ASSOCIATED GRADING EQUIPMENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE PERIOD BETWEEN 7:00 a.m. AND PROPOSER " SHARED - YARD 5% 101.64 Fs fL| 106.13 FS : 1115 S -

6:00 p.m. EACH DAY, MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY, AND NO EARTHMOVING OR GRADING OPERATIONS WOOD FEWCE : SRS 10139 rs YL | Il FS 11550 W 11175 bw 118.3 117.80 FS

SHALL BE CONDUCTED ON THE PREMISES ON SATURDAYS, SUNDAYS OR HOLIDAYS WITHOUT THE 97.5TW 25RYSB. : — |} ol AJTIF I aenn LEGEND

WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE CITY ENGINEER. 95.4 BW ) W T 101.39 F ,07??3’93 QF;E — ’ ;32'38 ,TE 116.59 FS S Ei]/ ‘RaEals 7 T T TS {TEM DESCRIPTION SYMBOL
95.4 EG - - . s 2 Lo T8

11. ALL MAJOR SLOPES SHALL BE ROUNDED INTO EXISTING TERRAIN TO PRODUCE A CONTOURED INSTALL MABONRY 3 i\” || TS < M1757s: ; 20" WE — PROPERTY LINE - __
TRANSITION FROM CUT OR FILL FACES TO NATURAL GROUND AND ABUTTING CUT OR FILL FACES. RETANNG watl PR RO T, L - [I-' 5\;| @ n LB Owg% 27(;%9 ——k /7 = 116.5FS 11267 FS orveway - | ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

12. NOTWITHSTANDING THE MINIMUM STANDARDS SET FORTH IN THE GRADING ORDINANCE, AND SDRSD C-5, 38" MAX| | + + *1R" = 7’%&%@% '. /D—G : P HIE T ox @ 116.3 TG r N/ L17.85.FS i0p_117.95 FS PROPOSED SETBACKS — —
NOTWITHSTANDING THE APPROVAL OF THESE GRADING PLANS, THE PERMITTEE IS RESPONSIBLE FOR g5 w N4+ + 4 .| -PLANTERS - 101.39 FS. -\ : ' | 115.3 N P 2% 10 = —
THE PREVENTION OF DAMAGE TO THE ADJACENT PROPERTY. NO PERSON SHALL EXCAVATE ON LAND 378 W A Jo ) 97.88 F6 100.16 IEjs : \ L _ . X A0 104115 117.37 FS S PROPOSED HARDSCAPE SRR
SO CLOSE TO THE PROPERTY LINE AS TO ENDANGER ANY ADJOINING PUBLIC STREET, SIDEWALK, 9.4 BW W + + + ' LS pW 10551 F5 1067 o PA116.0 W X\ 5522 SIS 117.62 FS
ALLEY, FUNCTION OF ANY SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM, OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY 95.4 EG o < Q07 FC 102.11F8 / 108195 FS ' —+ 115.2 BW\3 PAVERS | EX FIRE HYDRAA - PROPOSED PERVIOUS PAVERS
WITHOUT SUPPORTING AND PROTECTING SUCH PROPERTY FROM SETTLING, CRACKING, EROSION, R RS : K \.99.65F5 V100.0 Fs 18"%18" ey i IR 1165 T / ' 112.8 EG, 2.0 FS T BE REMO ANT -

SILTING SCOUR OR OTHER DAMAGE WHICH MIGHT RESULT FROM THE GRADING DESCRIBED ON THIS bty (| \ VPP BROOKS ‘BOX . N T T T T b By W <25 Fyss N VED| XL PROPOSED CONTOUR LINE 153
PLAN. THE CITY WILL HOLD THE PERMITTEE RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTION ON NON—DEDICATED 97.5_TW A =8 72 100.07 16 SR S ORe & R 8 Bl V= FYoB A\ N TR [17.5 FS 117.4 FS | 116.89 FS o)
IMPROVEMENTS WHICH DAMAGE ADJACENT PROPERTY. 95.2BWN|[] + + +fH —— 000 1¢/" | RAED. 5% 96.60 I S 18% ] 555 F5 1172 'S\ S\ |6 ,UZ%W sl T AR\ \ X ——————— At 116,76 FS 3 EXISTING CONTOUR LINE
+ o+ — H - 222 (<L Al . 0 — — = ] - N .
. . . 95.2 EG : 6. 1IE-96.5 i} XL Nelo1.39 FS |5 IS T 2R oy 1174 ¥5 | \oo . BERVIOUS | . POWER X PROPOSED MASONRY RETAINING

13. SLOPE RATIOS: CUT 2:1 FILL 2:1 SUMP. PUMP I A == - — N\I121 FS = L PAVERS . . = WALL SDRSD TYPE ON PLANS

CUT: 880 CY FILL: 372 CY EXPORT: 508 CY =7 g . . ' 190.1} TW ” S \101.00 s \ LOTLINE PERVIOUS ' o Yl — BTG T |1 POLE "INSTALL 9" ROLLED
99110 7/'2 RO\ ‘QQ.EJ Bl 100.0 FS e < PAVERS 705.8 Fﬂ 1158.0 145 FG > [ S \CW CURB, PAINTED jS SEWER UTILITY s s s

(NOTE: A SEPARATE VALID PERMIT MUST EXIST FOR OFFSITE IMPORT OR EXPORT AREAS.) : LI ¢ \J.EFS ane 1o/ N R T oA - et e ey 1 3 - S T TV 0 FS7X K 1 FIRE_HYORANT | RED WITHIN 15" OF 3

975 By AW e pERVIOUS | AT re K LI585\ TW ol I T A—UTLTY Box. | HYDRANT 5 SEWER LIFT STATION ©)
* THE QUANTITIES ESTIMATED ABOVE ARE FOR PERMIT PURPOSES ONLY AND SHOULD NOT BE USED : LA E | 191.33 FS N —— 1l 108

a9 N By T O 105.:48 FS 112.8 115.0 X" BUS,
FOR CONSTRUCTION BIDS. CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR THEIR ~ OWN EARTHWORK 95.0 BW (e PAVERS 1] 105.0 = / ' 1 = . . \ - BUBBLER™ RELOCATED h N
QUANTITIES. 95.0 EG X J*a*t | : _ ¥ 4 I « : -—1(')5 . FGI I \7 1.7 EG A\ W/ 'RIPRAP E 116.58 FS l'l<‘| STORMWATER UTILITY —t========

- ] , j o| o\ g = 11 LU — 211 )

14. SPECIAL CONDITIONS: IF ANY ARCHAELOGICAL RESOURCES ARE DISCOVERED ON THE SITE OF THIS 5T, 9788 Fo/ B | /M 5}1 @ Il R @ | £S5 116.2 '7_.7_7'_0.__.:; FG E J16.91 FS = TTIITIIIIIIIITY
GRADING DURING GRADING OPERATIONS, SUCH OPERATIONS WILL CEASE IMMEDIATELY, AND THE %+ o ERT A e | /f 05 T L “e1666 Fo | - ENGINEERED STORMWATER BIOBASIN ~ |fitrirrrrrrrets
PERMITTEE WILL NOTIFY THE CITY ENGINEER OF THE DISCOVERY. GRADING OPERATIONS WILL NOT 97.5 TW M G 5y ER SECOND FF 111.10 GO 101.47101.39 F. :| /3 FS105.73 FS rernsEanal 11617 FS 1 m "

COMMENCE UNTIL THE PERMITTEE HAS RECEIVED WRITTEN AUTHORITY FROM THE CITY ENGINEER TO 94.3 BW NI+ '3+ + N o === ) |LOWER SECOND| FF 107.68 N s INNU16.50 FS CITY STANDARD 9" ROLLED CURB L —
17 > <976 TW 101.39 TG 115.75 TG N L IN116.50 FS
ot 961 BW LOWER PAD '97.88 ' 104.6 IE ' B S S s s — 4” BUBBLER WITH RIPRAP
15. ALL GRADING SHOWN ON THIS PLAN SHALL BE COMPLETED AS A SINGULAR UNIT WITH NO PROVISION LB, 7, SHARED YARD 101.64 FS N | o507 £ g =t Sy
FOR PARTIAL RELEASES. SHOULD IT BE ANTICIPATED THAT A PORTION OF THIS PROJECT BE = o+ : GARAGE — : TN TN ”
COMPLETED SEPARATELY, A SEPARATE PLAN AND PERMIT APPLICATION SHALL BE SUBMITTED FOR +S+ + W ~INSTALL GRAVITY" GARAGE [ ] FF 106.40 UPPER SECOND FF 7 1.6 | —— _DG_.\-; ¥ ABBREVIATION LEGEND
APPROVAL 975 W Il = +/ 11/ WAL PER UNIT 3 FF 101.96 105.7. TW : LOWER SECOND FF''114.63 T AREA - \i| ROLLED CURB | «s BW = BOTTOM OF WALL ELEVATION
: yvaeTa V-t Ve ‘00 pap 101.30 ssyss—f || B|[ Wo1.3 Bw PAD 105.74 FIRST FLOOR FF 10449 | |IZ21 s o N rewove ex. T3 _
| g A - SDRSD C-09 : i L 417 S EG = EXISTING GRADE

16. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 858.720.2470 24 HOURS BEFORE 456 0.2 R [ [ ] | RETAINING WALL PAD 103.83 , =1 A REL WAL Fo — FINISHED SURFACE

GRADING OPERATIONS BEGIN. QO - 101.3 TG 5Sysg PER SDRSD C-03 UNIT 2 Z R R O 1 2o APPROX. 250’ SOUTH =
vo, @ 100.1 IE ’ 105.8 TG WITH CABLE RAIL N 8 TO_NEXT FIRE FG = FINISHED GRADE

17. FINISHED GRADING AND PLANTING SHALL BE ACCOMPLISHED ON ALL SLOPES PRIOR TO OCTOBER 1, 975 W[l + + TRIZLFC = 101.5 FG 1044 IE = 13.75 TG (NI TS S WIDE HYDRANT @ FL = FLOWLINE
OR IMMEDIATELY UPON COMPLETION OF ANY SLOPES GRADED BETWEEN OCTOBER 1 AND APRIL 1. ss2ewill .. B . 5% : 112.75 IE FS 114.0 [ mgen 2" HIcH N. GRANADOS AND FF = FINISHED FLOOR
PRIOR TO ANY PLANTING, ALL LANDSCAPING SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT 94.2 o\ . R 97.8 16 00.8 T 103.9 16 106.0 FS INSTALL 4” PVC PIPE R S A “C BERM . LOMAS SANTA FE DR GF = GARAGE FACE
AT THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW STAGE, OR BY SEPARATE LANDCSAPE PLAN. 96.1 JE 28] 98.0 FS /96.8 IE [99.8 IF 100.0 IE 105.75' TG 105.75 1G SR BEE ' IE = INVERT ELEVATION

i 978 16 —r————— e NI BENCH g LA = LANDSCAPE AREA

18. ALL OFF-SITE HAUL ROUTES SHALL BE SUBMITTED BY THE CONTRACTOR TO THE CITY ENGINEER FOR 97.5 TW + 4 97 — > ——= = = = = . TG = TOP OF GRATE ELEVATION

APPROVAL 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE BEGINNING OF WORK. 93.3 BW] X ot X 5'SYSB | 104.0 7] i il i i - T FS 115.0 53T o : RIM = TOP OF RIM ELEVATION
- . 933 104.0 B 2L TB ) 11475 FS =

19. UPON FINAL COMPLETION OF THE WORK UNDER THE GRADING PERMIT, BUT PRIOR TO FINAL GRADING 97.6 TW 98.50 FS Lo %@EGTQP ng; MCV),;‘-'LLW/I\ELLLEY:\A;K&)'I)\’(/ST/NG CRADE
APPROVAL AND/OR FINAL RELEASE OF SECURITY, AN AS—GRADED CERTIFICATE SHALL BE PROVIDED 955 BW : TR - 104.0 FS \106.0 FS 107.6 TW NETieS. 115.09°Fs FYSB = FRONT YARD SETBACK
STATING: "THE GRADING UNDER PERMIT No. SBGR—216 HAS BEEN PERFORMED IN SUBSTANTIAL 955 £G 96.6 BW 101.5 FS 101.5 FS 104.1 TW 105.6 BW 114.0 TW WATER : -

CONFORMANCE WITH THE APPROVED GRADING PLAN OR AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED AS—GRADED : 96. MLy PER : 107.5 EG 1155 TW 115.00 Fe RYSE = REAR YARD SETBACK
; SDRSD C-03 NON—LOCKABLE 101.5 BW ' 108.4 BW - METER SYSB = SIDE YARD SETBACK
PLAN". THIS STATEMENT SHALL BE FOLLOWED BY THE DATE AND SIGNATURE OF THE CIVIL ENGINEER 42" HIEGHT GATE 1015 EC INSTALL MASONRY 108.4 EG 112.0 BW
WHO CERTIFIES SUCH A GRADING OPERATION. 144 N RIOS AVE : RETAINING WALL PER 1120 EG
APN 263-372-23-01 SDRSD C-01
20. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DESIGN, CONSTRUCT, AND MAINTAIN ALL SAFETY DEVICES INCLUDING PM 20434 LOT1 121 N GRANADOS AVE [
SHORING, AND SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONFORMING TO ALL LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL US A1 PER DOC 10-2072 APN 263-372—19—00 PLAN TOP OF WALL
SAFETY AND HEALTH STANDARDS, LAWS AND REGULATIONS. & UND INT IN JEXC S 130FT/E 118.9 FT — aw \[ |
LOT 1 TR 1783 SCALE T'=10
EROSION CONTROL NOTES [ ]
1. STORM WATER AND NON-STORM WATER DISCHARGE CONTROL: BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES SHALL T ||
BE DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED TO MANAGE STORM WATER AND NON—STORM WATER DISCHARGES
FROM THE SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING EXCAVATION AND GRADING ACTIVITIES. | [ | —BOTTOM OF WALL
— B
2. EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL: EROSION PREVENTION SHALL BE EMPHASIZED AS THE MOST 7y e
IMPORTANT MEASURE FOR KEEPING SEDIMENT ON SITE DURING EXCAVATION AND GRADING ACTIVITIES. '
SEDIMENT CONTROLS = SHALL BE USED AS A SUPPLEMENT TO EROSION PREVENTION FOR KEEPING AL T I,
SEDIMENT ON SITE. , W T S B
— 140 19.9 - > EILAER
3. EROSION CONTROL ON SLOPES SHALL BE MITIGATED BY INSTALLING LANDSCAPING AS PER APPROVED 2% 1010 o
LANDSCAPE PLANS AS REQUIRED BY THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW CONDITIONS, OR BY TEMPORARY SETBACK 5 g
EROSION CONTROL CONFORMING WMMM&H LINE |L e —— EP 118.40 EP 118.05 g TYPICAL WALL ELEVATION
LBS/ACRE Z%_PURITY/ACRE SEED SPECIES 10+48.1 10+27.1 10+17.3 10+11.5 10+00 E£P 113,04 2 LOCATIONS SHOWN ON PLAN
20 70% PLUS ATRIPLEX GLAUCA ' ' NOT TO SCALE
50 PLANTAGE INSULARIS — :
5 SCARIFIED LOTUS SCOPARILS 210 — 1.9 Y | 2% 2% ’ e R
7 50% PLUS EXCHSCHOLTZIA CALIF. 2% < — e BUBBLER
91 | R — O l (POP UP EMITTER)
QAo FS 117.62 Q 10’ 9" ROLL<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>